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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors submit their report for the year ended 30 June 2016.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Village Roadshow Limited (“the Company” or “VRL”) is a company limited by shares that is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The
registered office and principal administrative office of the Company is located at Level 1, 500 Chapel Street, South Yarra, Victoria 3141.

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARIES
The names of the Directors and Secretaries of the Company in office during the financial year and until the date of this report are:

Directors

Robert G. Kirby Jennifer Fox Gambrell (appointed 19 November 2015)

Graham W. Burke Peter M. Harvie (retired 3 February 2016)

John R. Kirby Robert Le Tet

David J. Evans Timothy M. Antonie

Peter D. Jonson (retired 19 November 2015) Julie E. Raffe (alternate for Messrs. R.G. Kirby and G.W. Burke)

Company Secretaries
Shaun L. Driscoll

Julie E. Raffe
The qualifications and experience of the Directors and Secretaries and the special responsibilities of the Directors are set out below.
Directors

Robert G. Kirby AO
Co-Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director

First joined the Board on 12 August 1988, reappointed 5 July 2001. Holds a Bachelor of Commerce with over 30 years experience in the
entertainment and media industry. Chairman of Village Roadshow Limited 1994 to 1998, 2002 to 2006 and from June 2010 to 29 November
2013 when he became Co-Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer. Deputy Chairman Village Roadshow Limited 1990 to 1994,
1998 to 2002 and 2006 to June 2010. Through-the launch of Roadshow Home Video, Mr. Kirby was the driving force behind the Australian
video revolution of the 1980's and 1990’s. He is a pioneer of new cinema concepts in both Australia and internationally and has been at the
forefront of Village Roadshow's successful diversification into theme parks, radio and international film production. Director of Village
Roadshow Corporation Pty. Ltd., Deputy Chair of Peter MacCallum Cancer Foundation, Member of Patrons Council of Epilepsy Foundation
and Patron of Arts Centre Melbourne.

Member Executive Committee
Other Listed Public Company Directorships in previous 3 years: Nil

Graham W. Burke
Co-Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director

Member of the Board since 9 September 1988. Chief Executive Officer of Village Roadshow Limited from 1988 to 29 November 2013 and
Co-Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer from 29 November 2013. With unrivalled experience in the entertainment and film
industries, Mr. Burke has been one of the strategic and creative forces behind Village Roadshow's development and founded Roadshow
Distributors with the late Mr. Roc Kirby. Mr. Burke has been integral to strategically developing Warner Bros. Movie World and Village
Roadshow’s involvement with Sea World as well as ongoing Australian and international film production. Chairman of Creative Content
Australia (formerly IP Australia Foundation) from March 2016. Director Village Roadshow Corporation Pty. Ltd.

Chairman Executive Committee
Other Listed Public Company Directorships in previous 3 years: Nil

John R. Kirby AM, DUniv
Deputy Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Bachelor of Economics, University of Tasmania. Awarded Honorary Doctorate, Griffith University. Member of the Australian Society of
Accountants. Chairman of Village Roadshow Corporation Pty. Ltd. Mr. Kirby has held a wide number of executive positions in cinema
exhibition, film distribution, radio, theme parks, construction and strategy over his 45 years within Village Roadshow, and has been at the
forefront of many of the Group’s successful growth outcomes today. Currently, Chairman of the Sony Foundation Australia. Director,
Griffith University Advisory for CILECT Congress, Asia Pacific Screen Academy, Queensland College of Arts, and Victoria University
Confucius Institute. Previously Chairman, Village Roadshow Limited and Austereo Limited. He was Chairman, The Salvation Army
Advisory Board, Chairman, Red Shield Appeal, Deputy Chairman of The Conversation Media Group, former Director of IMNIS and former
Director of Jigsaw Foundation at the Royal Children’s Hospital, Surf Life Saving Australia Foundation. Former Chairman of Sponsors
Appeal Committee of the Victorian College of the Arts, and former Deputy Chairman of the Interim Council of the National Fiim and Sound
Archive. Former member of the Victorian Premier's Multi Media Task Force, Victorian Advisory Council of the Australian Opera, and
Progressive Business Victoria and former advisor, Commando Welfare Trust.

Other Listed Public Company Directorships in previous 3 years: Nil
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DIRECTORS AND SECRETARIES (continued)
Directors (continued)

David J. Evans
Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of the Board since 2 January 2007, appointed Lead Independent Director on 1 July 2014. Over 40 years international business
experience in media and entertainment industries including CEO of GTV Channel Nine in Melbourne, President, COO at Fox Television and
Executive Vice President News Corporation, both in the United States, including Sky Entertainment Services Latin America. Most recently
President and CEO of Crown Media Holdings Inc, previously Hallmark Entertainment Networks, since 1999 and served on the board of
British Sky Broadcasting Group Plc from September 2001 until November 2011. Director of Village Roadshow Entertainment Group
Limited.

Member Remuneration Committee
Chairman Corporate Governance & Nomination Committee (from November 2015)

Other Listed Public Company Directorships in previous 3 years: Nil

Robert Le Tet
Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of the Board since 2 April 2007. Holds a Bachelor of Economics Degree from Monash University and is a qualified accountant.
Founded and currently Executive Chairman of venture capital company, Questco Pty. Ltd. Over 35 years’ experience in broadcasting, film
and entertainment industries, including Director of television production company Crawford Productions. Formerly Deputy Chairman of
radio station EONFM and 20 years as Chairman and CEO of Australia’s largest film and advertising production company, The Filmhouse
Group. Previously Chairman of radio stations 3UZ and 3CV, WSA Communications Pty. Ltd. and Entertainment Media Pty. Ltd. and
Chairman of Metropolitan Ambulance Service in Melbourne. Served as Board Member of the Australian Broadcasting Authority and
Chairman of its Audit Committee.

Chairman Audit & Risk Committee
Member Corporate Governance & Nomination Committee

Other Listed Public Company Directorships in previous 3 years: Nil

Timothy M. Antonie
Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of the Board since 1 December 2010. Holds a Bachelor of Economics degree (major in accounting) from Monash University and
qualified as a Chartered Accountant. Over 20 years experience in investment banking focussing on large scale mergers and acquisitions
and capital raisings in the Australian media and entertainment, retail and consumer sectors. Managing Director of UBS Investment Banking
from 2004 to 2008.

Member Audit & Risk Committee
Chairman Remuneration Committee (from November 2015)
Member Corporate Governance & Nomination Committee

Other Listed Public Company Directorships in previous 3 years:
Premier Investments Limited, since 1 December 2009
Breville Limited, since 19 December 2013

Jennifer Fox Gambrell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of the Board since 19 November 2015. Holds a Doctorate in Business Administration (DBA) from the International School of
Management in Paris and an MBA from Baylor University in Texas. Until the sale to Accor in 2016, was President of Fairmont Hotels and
Resorts and President FRHI International, overseeing the luxury brand’s global hotel portfolio including Raffles, Fairmont and Swissétel in
all international markets outside North America. Over 25 years of experience in the luxury, resort and business segments of the hospitality
industry. Formerly Chief Operating Officer, Europe as well as Senior Vice-President Global Brand Management for InterContinental Hotels
Group, and previously holding several senior management roles at Starwood and ITT Sheraton including VP Global Brand Manager
Sheraton Hotels & Resorts.

Member Remuneration Committee
Member Audit & Risk Committee

Other Listed Public Company Directorships in previous 3 years: Nil

Julie E. Raffe
Finance Director

Member of the Board since 15 May 2012 as alternate director for Messrs. R.G. Kirby and G.W. Burke. Fellow of Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand, Fellow of Financial Services Institute of Australia, and graduate of Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Formerly Chief Financial Officer since 1992, Ms. Raffe has over 25 years experience in the media and entertainment industries. Director of
Village Roadshow’s wholly owned subsidiaries.

Member Executive Committee

Other Listed Public Company Directorships in previous 3 years: Nil
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DIRECTORS AND SECRETARIES (continued)
Company Secretaries

Shaun L. Driscoll
Group Company Secretary

Holds a Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor of Laws from University of Natal, is a Chartered Secretary and Fellow of the Governance Institute of
Australia. Formerly Co-Company Secretary & Group Manager Corporate Services, Mr. Driscoll has diverse industry experience including
over 25 years with Village Roadshow. Chairman of the Group’s Management, Risk & Compliance Committee, Secretary of all Village
Roadshow group companies and Director of Village Roadshow's wholly owned subsidiaries.

Julie E. Raffe
Finance Director

Appointed secretary of the Company on 29 April 2011. Details as above.
Relevant Interests

As at the date of this report, the relevant interests of the Directors in the shares (and “in-substance options” which are included in the totals
shown for ordinary shares) and options of the Company and related bodies corporate were as follows:

Name of Director Ordinary Shares Ordinary Options
Robert G. Kirby 68,713,136 -
Graham W. Burke 68,713,136 3,000,000
John R. Kirby 68,713,136 -
David J. Evans 111,971 -
Jennifer Fox Gambrell - -
Robert Le Tet 158,740 -
Timothy M. Antonie 22,485 -
Julie E. Raffe (alternate) 702,360 -

Messrs R.G. Kirby, G.W. Burke and J.R. Kirby each have a relevant interest in 100% of the issued capital of:
¢ Village Roadshow Corporation Pty. Limited, the inmediate parent entity of the Company; and
o Positive Investments Pty. Limited, the ultimate parent entity of the Company.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company and its controlled entities (“the Group”, “VRL group” or “consolidated entity”) during the financial year
were:

e Theme park and water park operations (“Theme Parks”);

¢ Cinema exhibition operations (“Cinema Exhibition");

¢ Film and DVD distribution operations (“Film Distribution”); and

e Sales promotion and loyalty program operations (“Marketing Solutions”).

In addition the VRL group has an equity-accounted 50.17% interest in Village Roadshow Entertainment Group Limited (“VREG”) which has
film production activities (“Film Production”) — refer to Note 11 to the Financial Statements for further details. Other activities, including
corporate overheads, financing activities, and digital and information technology development, are included under ‘Other’.

Overview of Results and Dividends / Distributions

The VRL group reported an attributable net profit of $15.7 million for the year ended 30 June 2016, down from the prior corresponding
period result of $43.9 million, which included attributable losses after tax from material items of $35.2 million in the year ended 30 June 2016
and $6.2 million in the prior year.

Attributable net profit, before material items and discontinued operations (‘NPAT”) for the year ended 30 June 2016 was $50.9 million,
marginally up on the prior year result of $50.1 million. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, excluding material items
and discontinued operations (“EBITDA") for the year ended 30 June 2016 was $168.8 million, up 1.8% on the prior year result of $165.7
million.

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations were 9.8 cents per share (2015: 27.5 cents per share). There were 1,601,464 potential
ordinary shares that were dilutive in the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: 2,082,767). Diluted earnings per share before material items and
discontinued operations of 31.4 cents per share increased slightly compared to the prior year result of 31.0 cents per share, based on a
weighted average total of 162,159,487 ordinary shares (2015: 161,600,932 ordinary shares).

In the year ended 30 June 2016, a fully-franked final dividend of 14.0 cents per ordinary share was paid in October 2015, and a fully-franked
interim dividend of 14.0 cents per ordinary share was paid in April 2016. Subsequent to 30 June 2016, the VRL Board has declared a fully-
franked final dividend of 14.0 cents per ordinary share, which will be paid in October 2016. In the year ended 30 June 2015, a fully-franked
final dividend of 14.0 cents per ordinary share was paid in October 2014, and a fully-franked interim dividend of 14.0 cents per ordinary
share was paid in April 2015.

Net cash flows from operations totalled $82.3 million in the year ended 30 June 2016, compared to $111.3 million in the prior year. Cash
flows used in investing and financing activities totalled $111.5 million in the year ended 30 June 2016, compared to $147.3 million used in
the prior year. The current year included $98.9 million relating to purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangibles, compared to a
total of $81.0 million in the prior year. Net proceeds from borrowings in the year ended 30 June 2016 were $95.6 million, compared to $13.0
million in the prior year.

An analysis of the Company’s operations, financial position, business objectives and future prospects is set out below. Further financial
summary information is set out in the Reconciliation of Results on pages 10 and 11, which form part of this Directors’ Report, and in Note 29
to the Financial Statements.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Operational Results

Theme Parks

Village Roadshow Theme Parks (“VRTP”) recorded EBITDA and profit before tax, excluding material items and discontinued operations
(“PBT") for the 12 months to 30 June 2016 that were marginally up on FY2015 at $88.0 million and $23.4 million respectively. VRTP will
carry substantially more deferred revenue into FY2017 than in previous years due primarily to the introduction of the Gold Coast parks
membership program and a very successful VIP Pass pre-sale campaign in FY2016. A number of projects came to fruition in FY2016,
including two management agreements in Asia and signing a letter of intent to bring Topgolf to Australia - construction of the first Topgolf
site is planned to start in CY2017, to open in FY2018.

The Gold Coast parks delivered an FY2016 EBITDA of $80.1 million (FY2015 $79.1 million). During FY2016, VRTP launched a membership
program for the Gold Coast parks, which offers consumers the benefit of smaller monthly payments while providing VRTP the benefit of
automatic renewals and higher yields. For the first 12 months, membership revenue is recognised proportionately based on the number of
months falling within the financial year, resulting in an increase in deferred revenues for those memberships that crossed the financial year
end. From the 13™ month of memberships, revenue is recognised as it is received on a monthly basis. Revenue from VIP Passes is
recognised in the financial year as they carry an end of financial year expiry. Pre-sold VIP Passes are recognised across financial years (the
majority in the expiry year).

VRTP’s Gold Coast theme parks enjoyed increasing visits by Chinese guests (now accounting for 8% of attendance) - with new flights into
the Gold Coast and Brisbane being rapidly added, this is generally considered the beginning of a substantial visitation growth curve. In-park
revenue at the Gold Coast parks grew as a result of increased attendance and in-park spending. At Warner Bros. Movie World, the special
events program (Fright Nights, White Christmas and Carnivale) produced a record financial performance, with White Christmas sold out for
the eight nights it ran. Sea World’'s Creatures of the Deep (opened July 2015) and newly renovated Nickelodeon Land (opened December
2015) were both well received by guests.

Despite the highly competitive Gold Coast accommodation market, Sea World Resort performed at record levels maintaining high
occupancy throughout FY2016, with year round occupancy exceeding 90%. The adjacent Conference Centre added a new dimension to the
Resort’s offering, exceeding expectations. Paradise Country enjoyed record attendance and financial performance with significant growth in
both domestic and international guests following its repositioning toward a family day out. Village Roadshow Studios operated at full
capacity in FY2016, and enjoyed a record financial performance. Additionally, Sound Stage 9, the largest sound stage in the Southern
Hemisphere, opened in March 2016.

At Wet'n'Wild Sydney, as reported previously, despite a strong start to season pass sales, the weather deteriorated at the beginning of the
September school holidays and remained unseasonably cool and wet throughout the summer season and into the second half of FY2016.
As a result, there was a decline in ticket sales during the 2015 school holiday periods when compared to the previous year. A number of
contingency campaigns were launched to help boost sales, stabilising the business in 2H16. Wet'n'Wild Sydney delivered FY2016 EBITDA
of $9.0 million. Wet'n'Wild Las Vegas (50.09% owned by VRL) delivered EBITDA of $3.6 million for the 12 months to 30 June 2016, up
5.3% on FY2015. The CY2015 season was the first full season of competition with the second water park in Las Vegas. In April 2016, the
park re-opened and is outperforming the prior year.

FY2017 is off to a strong start at the Gold Coast parks, with increased attendance and a positive response to the ongoing membership
program. Similarly, Sea World Resort, Sea World Helicopters, Paradise Country and Village Roadshow Studios are continuing the positive
trend seen in FY2016. At the Gold Coast parks, a number of FY2017 initiatives are being planned, including new shows and guest
experiences at Australian Outback Spectacular and Warner Bros. Movie World, the new Sea World Plaza retail and food area, and the new
Farmstay campground program at Paradise Country will launch. Work is also underway on the Gold Coast to utilise some of the vacant land
and diversify VRTP's offering.

Due to reopen in September for the 2016/2017 season, a number of strategic and operational initiatives are underway for Wet'n'Wild
Sydney, including the introduction of a membership program, an “open all summer” policy extending the operating hours of the park, a new
Dinosaur Lagoon attraction to drive visitation, and opening a Village Bean Cafe to expand food and beverage offerings. In addition, there will
be a special event program at Halloween, a Summer Concert Series in conjunction with Sony Music, premium lounge with views of the park
and high quality food to drive revenue, and a number of guest experience enhancements. At Wet'n'Wild Las Vegas, the new Season Pass
program has been very successful to date and the park continues to perform well. Summer promotions are ongoing for the balance of the
season. The implementation of new ticketing strategies across all parks followed a detailed internal analysis and external third party
assessment of the existing offer. The new strategy focuses on simplifying the offering, while better catering to guest needs and improving
ticket yield.

In relation to China and South East Asia, FY2016 has been successful for VRTP, with a number of opportunities progressing. In November
2015 an agreement was signed with Mission Hills, to operate Wet'n'Wild Haikou on Hainan Island, China’s first Wet'n'Wild branded water
theme park (expected to open mid CY2017). in July 2016 an agreement was also signed with Lai Sun to consult on the construction and
then operation of Lionsgate’s first themed immersive experience centre at Novotown on Henggin Island (expected opening late CY2018).
These opportunities do not require any VRTP capital commitment. VRTP continues to explore major theme park opportunities in Asia. The
business is exploring a number of opportunities and developing a range of concepts, including the Village Cube, a mini theme park concept
providing year round entertainment to a diverse array of guests. Further development of this concept in Asia would likely see some capital
investment by VRL in partnership with local investors. The business also continues to pursue management opportunities across Asia to
leverage its significant theme park and leisure entertainment experience.

Cinema Exhibition

The Cinema Exhibition division delivered a fifth consecutive record result, with EBITDA of $82.0 million for the 12 months to 30 June 2016,
up 14.6%, and PBT of $62.5 million, up 17.2% on FY2015. A strong product line-up supported the outstanding performance of the division
in FY2016. Star Wars: The Force Awakens was the stand out title in the first half, and indeed the year. The second half of FY2016
maintained an excellent pace, coming in just below the prior corresponding period. Key second half product included Star Wars: The Force
Awakens holdover and the incredible success of Deadpool and Finding Dory.

After an exceptional first-half result, the Australian Cinema Exhibition business delivered FY2016 EBITDA of $73.6 million, up 11.7% on the
prior corresponding period, as the underlying strength of the business, combined with popular titles continued to deliver. Increased average
ticket price contributed to the success of this business. The highly successful and ever-popular ¥max and Gold Class concepts continue
to expand, driving margins. Wpremium further enhances this offering, with two of these “business class” auditoria opened at the Jam
Factory during the year.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Operational Results (continued)

Cinema Exhibition (continued)

Spend per person similarly increased, with the expansion of hot food sales, gourmet popcorn, additional premium screens and record
functions and event sales. International Cinema Content (primarily Chinese and Indian films) and Alternate Content such as sporting and
music events continue to grow, achieving record results. Record screen advertising and sponsorship income further supported the
Australian Cinema Exhibition business as key titles drove advertising and several new marketing partners were signed up. The Village
Movie Club saw the ongoing growth of the loyalty program, increasing both the number of members and member box office share. Retail
Gifting drove physical and digital sales, including a record Christmas Gifting campaign of over $40.0 million across the joint Event and
Village Cinemas circuit. Other successful marketing initiatives included the Gold Class Super Pass, online food and beverage package trial
and the introduction of Family Pass tickets.

A number of sites were successfully completed and renovated throughout the year, including new sites at Glenelg (South Australia), North
Lakes and Springfield (Queensland), and refurbishments at the Jam Factory, Sunshine, Bendigo and Century City Walk in Victoria, and
Albury and Hurstville in New South Wales. Additionally, Roc’s Jam Factory, a premium bar concept, opened in July 2016, along with the
newly refurbished Jam Factory Gold Class.

In Singapore, the VRL group owns 50% of the Golden Village Cinema Circuit, the number one circuit with 43.7% market share. The
business delivered a record EBITDA of $11.7 million (share of associates profits), 42.6% up from FY2015. Premium pricing on Tamil/Hindi
tittes and additional public holidays drove increased average ticket price and movie combos linked with key titles resulted in higher spend
per person. Tiong Bahru reopened in May 2016 with five screens. The circuit continues to expand with an eight screen site at the SingPost
Centre at Paya Lebar due to open in 2017.

In the United States, the VRL group owns 30% of iPic Theaters, which has built a reputation as the leader in upmarket cinema and dining,
with 13 sites in operation at 30 June 2016. The business continues its program of development, targeting a critical mass of sites to disperse
overheads and build out development costs. In FY2016 two new sites opened (Houston and Miami). A new site opened at Fort Lee in New
Jersey in early August 2016 with two further sites underway in New York (one expected to open in FY2017). Additional sites are under
development and consideration.

In FY2017, the Cinema Exhibition division will maintain its customer focus in all geographies, including a new Village Cinemas Australian
mobile site already launched in early FY2017. Plans for the further roll out of Gold Class and Wmax will add to the customer experience
and ongoing margin enhancement. After a successful trial at the Jam Factory, Wpremium cinemas will be rolled out as part of the
refurbishments at Hobart (Tasmania) and Southland (Victoria). Additional new concepts are under consideration, further positioning Village
Cinemas as the destination of choice.

The business has a number of new sites planned to open over the next few years, in line with the strategy to expand into population growth
corridors, including in Palmerston (Northern Territory), Whitford and Innaloo (Western Australia), Plenty Valley (Victoria), Coomera
(Queensland), and Green Square (New South Wales). In addition, FY2017 has a strong product line-up so a similarly strong result as
FY2016 is anticipated in FY2017.

Film Distribution

The Film Distribution division delivered an EBITDA of $24.5 million in the 12 months to 30 June 2016, down from $34.6m in FY2015. In this
dynamic and transitioning market, a balanced portfolio is vital, ensuring stability of earnings. To this end, Roadshow’s portfolio includes a
number of underlying agreements, the terms for which vary between lower risk, lower margin and higher risk, higher margin. Despite stand-
out titles such as Mad Max: Fury Road (Home Entertainment), Oddball (Theatrical and Home Entertainment) and Game of Thrones Series 5
(Home Entertainment), the division suffered from a softer overall product slate and lower margin titles. Results in the second half of FY2016
suffered the compound effect of the flow through of underperforming first half theatrical titles into Home Entertainment.

The markets in which Roadshow operates are healthy, however, the FY2016 result for the division reflected the absence of top performing
titles in the portfolio. Australian FY2016 theatrical box office was strong, growing 10% year on year, and Roadshow's FY2016 market share
of 17.3% was down from 25.4% in FY2015 due to lack of blockbuster titles. In Home Entertainment, the Australian physical market
(approximately 79% of the Home Entertainment sector) declined 4.3% over FY2016, however this decline has been slowing, down from a
5.5% decline in the 12 months to 31 December 2015. Roadshow market share declined 2.6% to 28.6% in FY2016 as a result of weaker
theatrical product from the first half. The digital transactional market grew 6.7% over FY2016, but off a lower base and not yet offsetting the
decline in the physical market, and in Television, Subscription Video On Demand (“SVOD”) is gaining traction as services such as Netflix,
Stan and Presto gain popularity.

In Theatrical, there were a number of strong performing titles in FY2016 including The Hunger Games: Mockingjay Part 2, The Conjuring
Part 2 and Batman v Superman: Dawn of Justice. Roadshow continued to achieve outstanding results in the Australian film industry with
local content, with the strong performance of the FY2016 release, Oddball and the highly anticipated prequel, Red Dog True Blue,
scheduled to release on Boxing Day 2016.

In Home Entertainment, FY2016 represented the first full 12 months of distributing the Warner Bros. Home Entertainment product. The
nature of this arrangement is relatively low margin however it generates market share and profile. There were a number of standout titles for
FY2016, however the flow through effect of underperforming Theatrical titles and the closure of ABC stores impacted Roadshow Home
Entertainment.

In Television, Roadshow delivered a strong result for FY2016 with a number of key titles including The Hunger Games: Catching Fire.
SVOD platforms continue their success in Australia, and Roadshow Television is a leading supplier of content to both Netflix and Stan
having recently secured second year packages. Roadshow also enjoys output supply arrangements with Foxtel, Channel Nine, TVNZ and a
renewed multi-year agreement with Sky TV.

FY2017 has got off to a strong start, with Suicide Squad and Bad Moms releasing at the beginning of August both with excellent early
results. Roadshow has an ongoing commitment to review all elements of the division to ensure optimal alignment with the growth markets.
As part of an optimisation strategy, Roadshow closed the New Zealand office during FY2016 and distribution of all product for the New
Zealand market is now managed out of Australia. Given the reduction in profits, the division undertook a restructure in FY2016, which is
expected to deliver overhead savings in FY2017.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Operational Results (continued)

Film Distribution (continued)

As the industry transitions away from physical sales to the growing digital channels, Roadshow considers content ownership key. A strong
content library, partnerships with leading studios and distribution agreements with leading digital providers positions Roadshow across the
product lifecycle to maximise returns. Throughout FY2016, Roadshow has successfully executed a number of operational strategies to
ensure its success.

VRL holds 31% and two seats on the Board of FilmNation Entertainment, an international film sales company. FilmNation has diversified to
selling in-house productions, de-risked by pre-selling around the world and in the United States. The first two films since VRL’s investment
de-risked in this way are The Founder and Arrival. FilmNation has a diverse development slate and a number of other titles in various
stages of pre-production. This diversifies Roadshow's revenue stream through access to world markets and the possibility of break out hit
movies in the low budget genre. Roadshow has also secured an output agreement with STX, a new studio and production company,
ensuring control over distribution and marketing of its content. STX will deliver a substantial slate of theatrical films into FY2017, including
Bad Moms in August 2016.

In June 2016, Roadshow announced the formation of a new television production company, Roadshow Rough Diamond, with John
Edwards, one of Australia’s most successful and prolific television producers and his son, former ITV Studios and Endemol executive, Dan
Edwards. With a focus on quality drama, the business will create original long-form television and feature film content for domestic and
international audiences from FY2017. This venture will not require capital investment by the VRL group to fund production.

Marketing Solutions

VRL's Marketing Solutions division is a network of data-driven sales promotion and loyalty businesses with operations in Australia (under
the Edge Loyalty banner) and Europe/USA (under the Opia banner). Previously Edge Loyalty was reported within Other, however the
combination of Edge Loyalty and newly acquired Opia created the separately reported Marketing Solutions division. The Marketing
Solutions division works with leading global brands to help them sell more product, acquire more customers and retain business.

FY2016 has seen Marketing Solutions continue to expand its portfolio of complementary products and services to meet existing clients’
promotional needs, winning more business from existing accounts whilst also opening up new opportunities. Marketing Solutions delivered
an EBITDA of $8.0 million for the 12 months to 30 June 2016, an increase of 172.0% on FY2015 and PBT of $5.6 million, up from $2.2
million in FY2015. This result reflects the inclusion of Opia following its acquisition in December 2015.

For Edge Loyalty, FY2016 was a year for growth and development of existing solutions and investment in new business, expected to
positively contribute to the VRL group in the medium term — the business achieved strong organic growth in the Lifestyle Rewards product
and in the Consumer business (Good Food Gift Card), which has become the market leader in its category.

In December 2015, VRL announced that it had acquired 80% of Opia, a UK-based sales promotion consultancy for $50 million. The CEO
and Sales Director of Opia retained 10% equity each following the acquisition, and the acquisition positions the Marketing Solutions division
as a global player in the sales promotion and loyalty market, further diversifying the VRL group’s business and providing opportunity for
growth. During the second half of FY2016, Opia successfully delivered large scale, multi-territory sales promotions for leading Consumer
Electronic brands including HP and Samsung.

Marketing Solutions’ global expansion is now underway, with the UK operations providing a platform for growth across Europe, as well as
recently securing new opportunities in North America. Marketing Solutions has re-signed a number of key clients in Australia and UK that
will provide a solid base for growth within existing accounts. The division has also recently increased its sales force and account
management teams to meet the growing demand for the division’s unique suite of marketing and promotional services and the division is
expecting to capitalise on this investment in FY2017.

FY2017 will see Marketing Solutions work increasingly strategically with key accounts, selling a range of solutions. Most importantly,
Marketing Solutions will continue to play a key role in driving market adoption of digital promotional solutions, from digital platforms through
to digital rewards and reporting - Marketing Solutions will continue to invest heavily in the digital and IT platforms that underpin the divison’s
continued growth.

FEilm Production

Village Roadshow Entertainment Group (“VREG”) is an equity-accounted associate of VRL and consists of Village Roadshow Pictures
(“VRP”) and Village Roadshow Pictures Asia (“VRPA"). VREG released its first Hollywood film in 1998 and has gone on to establish itself
as the leading independent co-producer/co-financier in the world with 90 films released through to 30 June 2016. VREG represents an
opportunity for growth, as it has one of the strongest line ups of films in its history, and is realising a strategy put in place that emphasises
films with global brand and franchise potential.

Through its partnership with two major studios in Warner Bros. and Sony Pictures, VREG has created a strong portfolio of major motion
pictures with global box office potential, including Sully (Warner Bros.), The Magnificent Seven (Sony/MGM), and Collateral Beauty (Warner
Bros./New Line). In relation to sequels and franchises, VREG's strong library includes iconic titles such as The Matrix, Mad Max, | am
Legend and Sherlock Holmes. Amongst VREG'’s upcoming releases, a number have significant franchise and sequel potential, including
Ready Player One — developed with Warner Bros., King Arthur: Legend of the Sword, and Oceans Eight.

In relation to the Chinese production strategy, the Chinese box office last year was estimated at USD 6.8 billion, making it the world's
biggest market other than the USA. Domestic films and Sino-foreign co-productions are estimated to have generated an impressive 61.6%
of that total (USD 4.2 billion). VREG's Asian film production business, VRPA is one of the most deeply embedded and prolific foreign
players in China’s booming local production market.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Operational Results (continued)

Film Production (continued)

VRPA brings to the table a unique package that combines rich local market experience and know-how with wide-ranging international fim
expertise and relationships. VRPA has a Beijing-based bicultural and multilingual team and its portfolio approach and growing focus on the
development of franchises mirrors that of VRP. In view of the dynamic and somewhat unpredictable nature of China’s film industry, VRPA
has found it beneficial to anchor itself with a hands-on approach to primary development and direct relationships with several of China’s
leading filmmakers. VRPA's releases to date include Stephen Chow's record-breaking Journey to the West; Leste Chen’s hit romantic
comedy Say Yes!; Han Yan's Go Away, Mr Tumor!; Sammo Hung's The Bodyguard, and Cold War | and I/ — the latter having set new box
office records in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

VREG are engaged in discussions with studio partners to co-produce and co-finance TV series with global appeal utilising both original
content and IP based on the division’s film library. VREG believe this initiative will be both of strategic value and accretive to the film
production business and will enable further growth of VREG's Hollywood content business.

Other

Total net Corporate & Other costs for the 12 months ended 30 June 2016 were $39.6 million, compared to $35.6 million for FY2015 and
EBITDA was a $33.7 million loss, compared to a $30.8 million loss. The main increase in this segment relates to an investment in
investigating and utilising digital technology to drive revenue growth in the core businesses as summarised below.

In December 2015, the main Divisional and Corporate finance facilities were refinanced into a consolidated VRL group facility, which also
resulted in an increased facility limit of $800 million and extended expiry dates of December 2019 and 2020. This new VRL group facility,
which has been drawn to $590 million as at 30 June 2016, is fully revolving, with no amortisation payments required. The staged
restructuring of finance facilities since December 2014 has resulted in significant cost reductions and increased flexibility for the VRL group.
In FY2016, debt draw downs of the group facility totalled approximately $100 million and related to a number of key investments including
the acquisition of Opia, the contribution to VREG's new corporate debt facility, further instalments for the investment in FilmNation
Entertainment, new Cinema sites and refurbishments and rides at Warner Bros. Movie World.

The investment in Digital & IT Development in FY2016 was $5.4 million, up from $3.4 million in FY2015, as the business invested in
infrastructure upgrades and new technology to support the operations of the business and enhance the customer experience. Digital
Development continues to be a critical focus for VRL, as data and technology enables greater knowledge of customers, driving sales,
increasing customer satisfaction and reducing costs. In FY2016, the Digital team bedded down a number of tools and completed a series of
strategic engagements across multiple divisions. In FY2017, the focus will be on programs of innovation and development to engage new
and existing customers.

Material Items

Material items loss after tax of $35.2 million in the year ended 30 June 2016 comprised equity-accounted losses on net investments of $22.5
million (being the previously announced loss of $20.0 million in relation to the VREG subordinated loan of USD 15.0 million, and $2.5 million
in relation to iPic contributions of USD 1.8 million), restructuring costs totalling $7.6 million (including the write-off of capitalised borrowing
costs on the previous finance facilities, acquisition costs relating to Opia, and other costs relating to restructuring in the Film Distribution’
division), and impairment of assets and other non-cash adjustments totalling $5.1 million (including adjustments relating to balance sheet
items in the Marketing Solutions division).

Material items in the year ending 30 June 2017, resulting from transactions after 30 June 2016, include the investment of a further
approximately USD 5.0 million in VREG to ensure the continuity of development, and contributions totalling approximately USD 14.3 million
to iPic Theaters to continue the planned program of development.

Financial Position

During the year ended 30 June 2016, total assets of the consolidated entity increased by $59.4 million, including increases in intangible
assets of $50.8 million and property, plant and equipment of $29.7 million, which were partly offset by a decrease in cash of $31.0 million.
Total liabilities increased by $104.6 million, including an increase in borrowings of $101.6 million. Total equity of the consolidated entity
decreased by $45.3 million to $480.4 million during the year, which was mainly attributable to decreases in reserves of $20.6 million (mainly
resulting from the negative Controlled Entity Acquisition Reserve referred to below) and retained earnings of $29.3 million (resulting from
attributable net profit for the year of $15.7 million, less dividends declared during the year of $45.0 million).

The VRL group’s net debt as at 30 June 2016 was $534.7 million, giving a gearing ratio of 53%, compared to the prior year's gearing ratio of
43%. Of the total debt of $599.1 million, $1.1 million is classified as current liabilities, and $597.9 million is classified as non-current
liabilities, which has been determined in accordance with the requirements of the VRL group’s relevant finance agreements.

As previously announced, during the year ended 30 June 2016, the VRL group acquired 80% of Countrywide Property Investments (UK)
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Opia”), as part of the VRL group’s expansion of its Marketing Solutions division. As disclosed in Note 32 to the
Financial Statements, the acquisition of Opia resulted in an increase in goodwill of $52.5 million, and also resulted in a negative Controlled
Entity Acquisition Reserve of $15.8 million at the time of acquisition. Other than the above, there have been no significant changes in the
state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the financial year.

Events Subsequent to Reporting Date
Other than the following, there have been no material transactions which significantly affect the financial or operational position of the
consolidated entity since the end of the financial year. '

Subsequent to 30 June 2016, the VRL group has provided additional Subordinated Debt funding to an associated entity, iPic-Gold Class
Entertainment LLC (“IGCE"), which may be converted to equity. The funding that has been provided subsequent to 30 June 2016, plus
further amounts that will be provided prior to 30 September 2016, total USD 14.3 million. In addition, further funding of USD 5.0 million has
been provided to another associated entity, VREG, subsequent to 30 June 2016.

Due to equity-accounting requirements, as both IGCE and VREG have negative net assets, these further net investment amounts will be
immediately expensed, and these losses will be disclosed as Material Items in the VRL group’s results for the half-year ending 31 December
2016 and the year ending 30 June 2017.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Environmental Regulation and Performance
The VRL group was subject to the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting Act for the year ended 30 June 2016, however this has not

had any material impact on the VRL group.

Business Obijectives and Future Prospects

Strategy/Objectives
The strategy and objectives of the VRL group are summarised as follows:

e Ongoing improvement in operating performance of each division, including adapting to changing consumer preferences;

e Continued development of innovative and competitive products and services such as higher yielding cinema offerings and site
refurbishments in the Cinema Exhibition division, new attractions and events at existing locations and development of new locations for
the Theme Parks division, and ongoing business development for the Marketing Solutions division;

Ongoing expansion in relation to the Group’s involvement in theme parks in China and South east Asia;

Ongoing review of potential further investments across the VRL group's various divisions, subject to acceptable financial returns;
Increase in output of films per year by VREG, improving the financial performance of the Film Production division;

Continuing to monitor opportunities in the digital and online space; and

Continuing to closely monitor and review corporate overheads, including remuneration costs, in light of ongoing efficiency reviews.

Business Risks

Material business risks that could have an effect on the financial prospects of the VRL group, and the way in which the VRL group seeks to

address some of these risks, are as follows:

e Consumer spending — a shift in the patterns with which consumers spend their disposable income could impact the Group in all of its
businesses, however historical experience has shown that the Group’s entertainment offerings are generally impacted less by economic
downturns compared to other discretionary expenditures of consumers;

e Competition — all of the Group's businesses are continuously vying for customers against a wide variety of competitive forces;

e Technology — the media through which people receive entertainment content is ever-changing, with increased digitalisation and
portability being key focuses for many consumers, although the uniqueness of the Group's ‘out-of-home’ entertainment experiences
appear to have reduced the extent and impact of this issue;

e Piracy — the ongoing issue of film and music piracy poses a challenge to the Group’s Cinema Exhibition, Film Distribution and Film
Production businesses, and the VRL group is actively working with other industry participants to reduce the severity of this risk —
recently-enacted legislative changes in Australia should also assist in this respect;

e Lack of quality films — the Cinema Exhibition and Film Distribution businesses are dependent on a solid and reliable flow of quality, high
grossing film content. This risk has been partly mitigated in Film Distribution by long term supply contracts with major suppliers,
including Warner Bros., and in Cinema Exhibition by new offerings (e.g. Gold Class) and alternative content and uses;

e Film production volatility — film production is an inherently volatile business. This risk is partly mitigated by VREG adopting a portfolio
approach, however the Film Distribution division may also be impacted;

e Weather — extreme weather events can challenge admission levels at the Theme Parks division’s businesses, with potential customers
not travelling to such destinations when the weather is severe, such as floods or cyclones. The VIP season pass ticket promotions and
memberships seek to partially address this risk by allowing tickets to be utilised when better weather returns;

e International tourism — tourism can be affected by multiple factors including foreign currency exchange rates, severe weather, disease
outbreaks and terrorism threats, however none of the VRL group’s businesses, including in the Theme Parks division, are heavily reliant
on international visitation (although they are still affected to some extent);

e Safety — the Theme Parks and Cinema Exhibition businesses operate public venues and (in the case of Theme Parks) rides and other
attractions, with the consequence that there is risk of physical injury or harm. The VRL group takes its commitment to the safety of both
its staff and its patrons at all of the Group’s venues very seriously, primarily in order to ensure that a safe environment is always
provided for patrons and staff, and as a secondary issue, to minimise any adverse legal or reputational consequences of any serious
incidents; and

e Development and subsequent operation — the building of either new cinema sites or theme parks, both in Australia and overseas,
involves inherent risks to such development projects, including cost and time overruns, community distaste for a project, regulatory
hurdles and various governmental requirements and permissions, and the subsequent operational performance of the new
developments. However, due to the diversity and scale of the VRL group’s other businesses, any adverse impact on the Group from any
individual development or new operation, whether in Australia or elsewhere, is not expected to be significant, and the expertise and
experience of the Group in delivering and operating such projects mitigates this risk.

Future Prospects

Subject to the business risks outlined above, and general economic risks and uncertainties, it is anticipated that the VRL group will continue
to produce solid operating profits in future years. The Group has maintained an appropriate net debt position and has enjoyed reliable cash-
flows from its existing businesses. If this continues, the Group may be able to take advantage of potential future profitable development
opportunities when they arise, which may include opportunities in Australia and elsewhere, with a focus on Asia. Specific future prospects
for each division have been included in the Operational Results section above.

The Group'’s brands are well recognised and respected, and all of the Group's businesses are focussed on ensuring that their customers
have an enjoyable entertainment experience to encourage repeat visitation. The Company is committed to maintaining a consistent, stable
dividend return to shareholders whilst retaining the flexibility for future expansion options.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of unissued shares under option, and shares issued as a result of the exercise of options, are set out in Note 19 to the Financial
Statements. Details of share, option and “in-substance option” transactions in relation to Directors and other Key Management Personnel of
the consolidated entity are set out in the Remuneration Report.

INDEMNIFYING AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS AND AUDITORS

Since the commencement of the financial year, the Company has not, in respect of any person who is or has been an officer or auditor of
the Company or related body corporate, indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability (including costs and
expenses incurred in successfully defending legal proceedings) incurred as an officer or auditor, nor has the Company paid or agreed to pay
a premium for insurance against any such liabilities incurred as an officer or auditor other than an un-allocated group insurance premium
which has been paid to insure each of the Directors and Secretaries of the Company against any liabilities for costs and expenses incurred
in defending any legal proceedings arising out of their conduct as officers of the Company or related body corporate, other than conduct
involving wilful breach of duty.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
The Remuneration Report, which forms part of this Directors’ Report, is set out on pages 13 to 24.

DIRECTORS' MEETINGS
The following table sets out the attendance of Directors at formal Directors' meetings and committee of Directors' meetings held during the
period that the Director held office and was eligible to attend:

Name of Director Number of Meetings Held While in Office Number of Meetings Attended
Corporate Corporate
Governance and IGovernance and
Formal Audit & Risk | Remuneration | Nomination Formal Audit & Risk | Remuneration | Nomination

Robert G. Kirby
Graham W. Burke
John R. Kirby

9 6

9 9

9 - - 7 - -
David J. Evans 9 - 4 4 8 - 4 4
Peter D. Jonson 3 1 2 3 2 1 1 3
Jennifer Fox Gambrell 6 2 2 - 2 1 2 -
Peter M. Harvie 5 - - - 5 - - -
Robert Le Tet 9 3 - 2 9 3 - 2
Timothy M. Antonie 9 3 3 9 3 3

3 - - 3 - -

Julie E. Raffe (alternate)

Informal procedural meetings attended by a minimum quorum of three Directors to facilitate document execution and incidental matters are
not included in determining the number of Directors' meetings held.

TAX CONSOLIDATION
A description of the VRL group’s position in relation to Australian Tax Consolidation legislation is set out in Note 4 to the Financial

Statements.

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE
The Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of the Company, which forms part of this Directors’ Report, is set out on page 12.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES PROVIDED BY AUDITOR

Details of the non-audit services provided by the auditor are set out in Note 26 to the Financial Statements. The non-audit services
summarised in Note 26 were provided by the VRL group’s auditor, Ernst & Young. The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit
services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The nature and
scope of each type of non-audit service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

ROUNDING

The amounts contained in this report and in the Financial Statements have been rounded (where applicable) to the nearest thousand dollars
(unless stated otherwise) under the option available to the Company under ASIC Corporations Instrument 2016/191. The Company is an
entity to which the Instrument applies.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors at Melbourne this 15th day of September 2016.

G.W. Burke
Director
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Ernst & Young Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
8 Exhibition Street Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia ey.com

Building a better GPO Box 67 Melbourne VIC 3001
working world

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Village
Roadshow Limited

As lead auditor for the audit of Village Roadshow Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2016, |
declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Village Roadshow Limited and the entities it controlled during the
financial year.

Lk

Ernst & Young

David Shewring
Partner

Melbourne

15 September 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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STRUCTURE OF THIS REPORT

Village Roadshow is committed to the transparency of its remuneration arrangements. This year, the Remuneration Report (“Report”) has
been substantially updated to improve the clarity of information and to explain proposed changes to executive remuneration in FY2017.
The information in this Report has been audited as required by Section 308(3C) of the Corporations Act 2011 (“the Act”) and forms part of
the Directors’ Report in accordance with Section 300A of the Act. The Report is organised as follows:

1. Scope of the Remuneration Report

(a) Remuneration framework summary
2. Remuneration strategy and governance (b) Remuneration governance
(c) Changes effective for FY2017

(a) Fixed compensation
3. Remuneration framework (b) Short-term incentives

(c) Long-term incentives

(a) Performance against financial metrics

(b) Performance against non-financial metrics

(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
(d) Five year company performance

4. Remuneration outcomes and corporate performance

(a) Executive Directors
(b) Executive Committee

5. Employment contracts

(a) Ordinary shares held by KMP
6. KMP transactions and holdings (b) ‘In substance options’ held by KMP
(c) Options over ordinary shares held by KMP

(a) Remuneration summary
(b) Directors’ Share Plan

7. Non-executive director remuneration

8. Other transactions with KMP

1. SCOPE OF THE REMUNERATION REPORT

This Report details the remuneration arrangements for directors and senior executives of Village Roadshow Ltd. These key management
personnel (“KMP”) have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group. The names, positions,
and terms of KMP active during FY2016 are as follows:

Name Current Title/Position Started as KMP Cessation Current Category

Robert G. Kirby Co-Executive Chairman and Co-CEO 5 July 2001 - Executive Director

Graham W. Burke Co-Executive Chairman and Co-CEO 9 September 1988 - Executive Director

Clark J. Kirby Chief Operating Officer 1 December 2010 - Executive Committee Member
Julie E. Raffe Finance Director 28 September 1992 - Executive Committee Member
Simon T. Phillipson General Counsel 13 May 1996 - Executive Committee Member
Alistair Bennallack Chief Financial Officer 26 October 2015 - Executive Committee Member
John R. Kirby Non-Executive Director 12 August 1988 - Non-Executive Director

David J. Evans Independent Director 2 January 2007 - Non-Executive Director

Peter D. Jonson Independent Director 24 January 2001 19 November 2015 Non-Executive Director
Robert Le Tet Independent Director 2 April 2007 - Non-Executive Director
Timothy M. Antonie Independent Director 1 December 2010 - Non-Executive Director

Peter M. Harvie Independent Director 20 June 2000 3 February 2016 ~ Non-Executive Director
Jennifer Fox Gambrell Independent Director 19 November 2015 - Non-Executive Director

2. REMUNERATION STRATEGY AND GOVERNANCE
(a) Remuneration framework summary

The Group’s remuneration strategy is to provide a locally and internationally competitive offer, with a significant ‘at-risk’ component to
motivate short and long-term performance in line with its business strategy.

The Company's businesses are global, competitive, complex and fast-moving, with ongoing changes in consumer behaviour and
technology creating new challenges for operators. The Board is conscious of the need to attract and retain talented senior executives in a
global marketplace where industry experience and networks are critical to success. As a result, VRL benchmarks its senior executive roles
against both international and local comparators. There are few directly comparable businesses operating in the Australian market,
particularly in relation to the breadth of the operations on a geographic and business scope basis. The challenges, and the opportunities,
that this mix of characteristics brings results in the need for remuneration generally being higher than local senior executive roles for
businesses of comparable size.

VRL'’s two Executive Directors, Mr. Robert Kirby and Mr. Graham Burke, are both Co-Executive Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”) of VRL. These titles recognise that both Mr. Kirby and Mr. Burke work closely together as a highly effective team as the two most
senior executive officers in the Group. Mr. Kirby and Mr. Burke effectively share both positional functions between them and the joint titles
facilitate Mr. Kirby's and Mr. Burke’s international activities when establishing and maintaining strong business relationships with the most
senior executives in leading media and entertainment companies across the United States, Asia and Europe. In different regions, CEO and
Chairman titles carry different perceptions, and having both provides greater benefit to those relationships. Both men primarily concentrate
their various efforts in different parts of the Company’s businesses in Australia and around the world.
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2. REMUNERATION STRATEGY AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

(a) Remuneration framework summary (continued)

The Company’s remuneration strategy is also designed to motivate executives to deliver shareholder value in the short and long-term. The
‘at-risk’ component of executive remuneration in FY2016 is payable based on performance against a mix of corporate and individual
measures. Executives also hold substantial interests in the Company in the form of shares and options, further aligning their interests to
those of the shareholders, and are prohibited from hedging those interests while in office.

The Group’s executive remuneration framework is as follows. The overall Group remuneration objective is to reinforce the short, medium
and long-term financial targets and business strategies of the Group and provide a common interest between executives and shareholders
by aligning the rewards that accrue to executives with the creation of value for shareholders.

| OBJECTIVE |
Provide competitive, fair and Link remuneration to operational goals Align to shareholder
appropriate compensation and individual performance wealth creation
V. \ V-
’ 7
Remuneration L Provide competitive, fair, and | AT-RISK" REMUNERATION J
structure | appropriate compensation ‘ Short-term incentives ‘ ‘ Long-term incentives 1
|
Rem i B lary, superannuation
emuneration P ase salary, supers Annual cash bonuses Shares and options
components l and benefits
I
1 Reward for role, size and — .
L Reward for contribution to annual targets Reward for creation of long-term,
Purpose » complexity, individual s .
o and individual performance demonstrated sustainable growth
| contribution and competence
(b) Remuneration governance

A summary of the Group’s remuneration governance is set out below. The charter, role, responsibilities, operation and membership of the
Remuneration Committee of the Board are set out in the Company’s Corporate Governance Statement which is available on the Company’s
website at www.villageroadshow.com.au.

Board
Approves remuneration of Executive Directors and senior executives
Sets Non-Executive Djrector remuneration

E

Remuneration committee
Three independent Non-Executive Directors
Recommends remuneration for Executive Directors and senior executives
Reviews remuneration at least annually

Using this information
Advice from independent remuneration consultants
Input from management on business performance
International practices in the entertainment industry
Local expectations and practices

Based on our remuneration principles
Reinforce strategic business plans
Align to shareholder value creation
Compete for talent
Retain and motivate our people

(c) Changes effective for FY2017

The Board is committed to transparent and constructive relationships with shareholders, and regularly reviews remuneration arrangements,
to ensure they meet the needs of the business and shareholder expectations. Effective 1 July 2016 the Company has implemented
changes to the remuneration framework to further align executive interests with those of shareholders. These changes are:

(i) Base remuneration for Co-Chairmen/Co-CEOs has been decreased to $1,718,655 per annum from $2,687,310 — base
remuneration includes superannuation and other benefits and allowances;

(i) The prior contractual ability for the Co-Chairmen/Co-CEOs to seek a potential loan from the Company of up to $2 million has been
removed;

(iii) Short-term incentives (“STI”) for the Co-Chairmen/Co-CEOs have increased from a maximum potential amount of $750,000 each in
FY2016 to a maximum potential amount of 100% of base remuneration in FY2017 and future years. These ‘at-risk’ STls will be
subject to performance hurdles including Net Profit After Tax (‘NPAT") (45% of potential total STI), Cash Flow Return on Investment
(“CFROI") (20% of potential total STI) and strategic initiatives around capital investment and management and revenue growth
initiatives (35% of potential total STI);

(iv) STI bonus calculations for all KMP will be based on reported results including material items;
v) The introduction of an STI clawback policy for all KMP in the event of an amendment to reported financial results;
(vi) The Co-Chairmen/Co-CEOs have entered into new contracts on the above terms with effect from 1 July 2016; and
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2. REMUNERATION STRATEGY AND GOVERNANCE (continued)
(c) Changes effective for FY2017 (continued)

(vii)  The Company's Executive Share Plan (“ESP”) has been amended from FY2017 to include hurdle rates comparing the Company’s
Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) to the relevant ASX200 benchmark group such that ESP shares will partially vest if the Company
achieves a TSR of 50% of the relevant benchmark and will fully vest if the Company achieves 75% or more of the relevant TSR
benchmark, with pro-rata vesting between these points. TSR must be positive for any vesting to occur. Also future allocations
under the ESP will be on an annual basis (excluding the Co-CEO/Co-Chairmen) as a proportion of remuneration based on seniority,
personal and company performance, with vesting over five years. TSR is considered to be the most appropriate performance
hurdle as it takes into account both share price performance and dividend payments over time.

3. REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK

The Company’s remuneration framework for FY2016 is set out below and has three components: fixed compensation, short-term incentives
and long-term incentives (“LTI"). Effective 1 July 2016, the Company has implemented a number of changes to the remuneration
framework, and the changes are set out on page 14.

(a) Fixed compensation

Provide a level of fixed compensation which is fair, reasonable and appropriate to attract and retain
Objective executives having regard to the seniority of the position, and the competitiveness of the market (both
locally and globally where appropriate).

Composition Cash, superannuation, insurance, car allowance or lease and other fringe benefits.

Reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee based on the scale and complexity of the role,
Benchmarks benchmarked against comparable roles in the international and local market. Fixed compensation is set
taking into account the levels of STI and LTI opportunities.

The Group provides benefits such as Company-maintained vehicles, vehicle leases or car allowances as part of fixed remuneration.
Superannuation or retirement benefit amounts within statutory limits are also paid, including various ancillary insurance covers. The
grossed-up taxable value of these benefits have been included as a non-monetary benefit, with the details of the value of these benefits set
out on pages 19 and 20 of this Report.

(b) Short-term incentives

Objective Link executive remuneration to the achievement of annual operational targets for all executives, and to
individual targets for Executive Committee members. Levels are set by balancing the incentive offered
with the cost to the Group, and to ensure that a large proportion of an executive’s remuneration is ‘at-risk’,
with the proportion ‘at-risk’ increasing with the seniority of the executive.

Eligibility All executives and senior managers, including non-KMP senior managers.
Opportunity Executive Directors — maximum of $750,000
Executive Committee Members - 100% of base salary
Performance measures Measure Calculation % component
Cash flow return  Earnings before interest, tax, depreciationand  33.3% for Executive Directors
on investment amortisation (“EBITDA”"), excluding material 16.7% for Executive Committee
(“CFROI") items of income and expense and discontinued  Members

operations, as a percentage of capital
employed, represented by total shareholders’
equity plus net debt.

Budgeted net Budget set by the Board for the year for net 66.7% for Executive Directors
profit after tax profit after tax before material items and 33.3% for Executive Committee
(“NPAT") discontinued operations, adjusted for any Members

acquisition or disposal of a business during the

year.
Individual key Personalised KPIs relating to the role, position ~ 50% for Executive Committee
performance and responsibilities of the individual executive Members
indicators for the performance period, as set by the
(“KPIs™) Executive Directors and approved by the

Board. These KPls include corporate
governance, capital management, risk
management and earnings growth goals.
Individual KPIs have not been listed due to
commercial sensitivity.

Performance schedule Measure Schedule

CFROI Calculated on a sliding scale between 10% and 20%, with nil bonus for a CFROI
achieved in any year of less than 10% and capped at the maximum bonus where
CFROI exceeds 20%.

Budgeted NPAT  50% payable on the Company achieving 92.5% of the Budgeted NPAT; 50%
payable pro-rata on a sliding scale up to achievement of 100% of Budgeted
NPAT. These levels of NPAT are considered appropriate because the Board sets
budgets with positive underlying assumptions. This is illustrated by the fact that
no bonus has been payable for this STI component in the past two financial
years.

Individual KPIs Performance of Executive Committee Members against individual KPls is
assessed by the Executive Directors and a recommendation for bonus payment is
made to the Remuneration Committee for review and approval.
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3. REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK (continued)
(b) Short-term incentives (continued)

Accrual

Only the components of STI bonus payments that can be accurately determined are accrued at balance
date - remaining components of STI bonus payments, such as those related to personal KP| performance
criteria for Executive Committee members, are calculated after balance date and are paid in the following
October.

Review

Proposed bonus payments to Executive Committee members are reviewed and approved by the
Remuneration Committee.

Compensation for deferred

grant date

With the appointment of Ms. J.E. Raffe as Finance Director of the Company in May 2012, Ms. Raffe's
proposed ESP allocation was delayed from the June 2012 ESP allotment to other Executive Committee
Members, granted at $3.14, to 29 November 2012 to allow for shareholder approval at the Company's
2012 annual general meeting, following which the ESP shares were issued at $3.78. The Company
agreed to compensate Ms. Raffe with an additional bonus at the time of her future sale of these ESP
shares for the additional value, if any, foregone by the deferred grant date. This potential bonus payment
to Ms. Raffe represents a cash-settled share-based payment estimated to be a maximum of $275,439, to
be re-assessed at each financial year for changes in expected probability of payment. The fair value of
this additional bonus amount was estimated on the basis of the estimated after-tax impact of $0.64 per
share, being the difference between $3.78 and $3.14, and is accrued for over the 5 years from date of
grant, being $54,090 for the 2016 financial year (2015: $71,920).

(c) Long-term incentives
(i) Executive Share Plan (ESP)

Objective

Retention of key executive talent and alignment with interests of shareholders, which encourages a sense
of ownership by the holders.

Eligibility

All Executive Committee Members (other than Directors) and other non-KMP senior managers.

Instrument

The Remuneration Committee issues restricted shares for purchase by Executives using a limited
recourse loan. The shares are held directly by the Executive who pays for the allotment by obtaining a
loan from the consolidated entity which holds security over the shares. Under the terms of that loan, the
holder is restricted from selling or otherwise dealing with the shares while they are restricted. Any value
accruing to the recipient is derived from improvement in the Company’s share price and dividends and
distributions by the Company.

Grant value

Shares are issued from time to time at the Remuneration Committee’s discretion. There were no long-
term incentive plan allocations during the year ended 30 June 2016 to any Executive Committee Member.
On 29 June 2015 an allotment of 300,000 and 100,000 shares was made to Messrs C.J. Kirby and S.T.
Phillipson respectively at $6.56 per share under the Company’s Executive Share Plan. The fair value of
each ‘in substance option’ estimated at date of grant on 29 June 2015 was $1.30.

For details of current grants to Executive Committee Members, see ‘In Substance Options’ on page 23 of
this Report. The notional adjusted equity value of ESP allotments and the percentage of each Executive
Committee Member’s total remuneration under the LTI are detailed on pages 19 and 20 of this Report.

Grant price

Shares are issued at the 5-day weighted average price on the market prior to allotment, rounded up to the
next whole cent. The loan bears interest at twenty cents per share per annum and the first twenty cents
of dividends per share per year is used to repay the interest charged. 50% of the remaining dividend per
share is used to repay the capital amount of the loan. If the loan balance owing falls below $2.00 per
share, the interest rate becomes 10% of the balance owing on the loan.

Vesting schedule

One third of the grant is earned and becomes exercisable at the end of years 3, 4 and 5 from the date of
issue.

Performance hurdles

There are no specific performance conditions for the removal of restrictions over shares granted under the
ESP.

Termination/forfeiture

If the Executive Committee Member resigns or is dismissed, the restricted shares are forfeited and the
loan on the remaining unrestricted shares must be repaid within six months or such other time as
approved by the Company’s Remuneration Committee. If the market value of the remaining shares at the
end of the six month period is less than the amount owing on the loan, the Company buys back the
shares and cancels them in repayment of the loan without further recourse to the former Executive
Committee Member.

There are no provisions for the automatic removal of holding restrictions on the relevant shares in the
event of a change of control of the Company.

Hedging Consistent with the Corporations Act 2001, Executive Committee participants are prohibited from hedging
their unvested ESP shares.

Dilution The ESP allows for the issue of up to 5% of the Company’s issued shares to Executives and employees
of the consolidated entity and significant associated entities.

Valuation The fair value of these ‘in substance option’ grants are amortised on a straight-line basis over five years.

The Company does not consider it is appropriate to ascribe a ‘value’ to the LTI for remuneration purposes
other than the amortised fair value measurement in accordance with the provisions of AASB 2: Share-
based Payment. From 1 January 2005, options or ‘in substance options’ granted have been valued using
the Black Scholes or binomial option-pricing model or the Monte Carlo simulation technique, which takes
account of factors including the option exercise price, the current level and volatility of the underlying
share price, the risk-free interest rate, expected dividends on the underlying share, current market price of
the underlying share and the expected life of the option.

The Company has used the fair value measurement provisions of AASB 2: Share-based Payment for all
options or equity instruments granted after 7 November 2002 which had not vested as at 1 January 2005.
Under AASB 2: Share-based Payment these are all required to be accounted for and valued as equity-
settled options. For the purpose of this Report, these have been referred to as ‘in substance options’
even where the equity instrument itself is not a share option.
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3. REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK (continued)

(c) Long-term incentives (continued)
(ii) CEO Option Plan (OP)

Objective

Retention of key executive talent and alignment of interests with shareholders. In October 2012, the
employment contract of Mr. Graham Burke to December 2017 included a replacement option plan for the
previously expired option plan.

Eligibility

Mr. Graham Burke

Instrument

Options over ordinary shares. The options are not transferable and do not confer any right to participate in
bonus issues or cash issues of ordinary shares. They do not carry voting or dividend rights and are not listed
for quotation on ASX. All options must be exercised by 1 March 2019.

Grant value

4.5 million options were issued on 29 November 2012. The fair value of each option estimated at date of grant
on 29 November 2012 was $0.73, $0.74 and $0.75 for Tranches 1, 2 and 3 respectively. The notional adjusted
equity value of the option allotment and the percentage of Mr. Burke’s total remuneration are detailed on pages
19 and 20 of this Report.

Grant price

The option exercise price is adjusted for discounted cash issues, and the number of shares issued on exercise
of an option is adjusted for bonus issues of shares.

The options were initially exercisable at $3.76 per share. Following the $0.25 per share reduction of share
capital approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 29 November 2013, the exercise price of
the options was reduced to $3.51 per share, effective from 31 December 2013.

Performance period

Performance is measured over a three year period prior to each vesting date.

Performance hurdles

Vesting is subject to two hurdles based on earnings per share and dividends per share.

Measure Calculation % component
Compound annual Diluted earnings per share before material items 50%

growth rate (“CAGR”) in and discontinued operations for the year ended 30

earnings per share June 2012, being 34.4c per ordinary share

(“EPS")

CAGR in dividends per Actual dividends paid in the 2012 calendar year, 50%

share (“DPS”) being 22 cents per ordinary share inclusive of

franking credits

Vesting schedule

The options become exercisable in tranches of one third (1.5 million options) on the first of March 2016, 2017
and 2018.

Half of the tranche is subject to the Company achieving certain growth CAGR in EPS over the three year
vesting period. If 8% CAGR is achieved over the period, all of that component vests. If between 4% and 8%
CAGR is achieved, a pro-rata straight line vesting scale is applied.

The other half of the tranche is subject to growth in DPS. The Company must achieve 8% CAGR in DPS over
two out of the four year vesting period for the full amount of that component to vest. If between 4% and 8%
growth is achieved, a pro-rata straight line vesting scale is applied.

The effect of the performance hurdles on the potential vesting of the options can be illustrated as follows:

Options to vest if: Compound Annual Growth Rate (“CAGR”)

<4% 4% 4% - 8% =or>8%
EPS CAGR hurdle achieved Nil 375,000  Sliding Scale * 750,000
Dividend CAGR hurdle Nil 375,000 Sliding Scale * 750,000
achieved #

# Subject to 2 out of 4 years’ test
* A pro rata straight line vesting scale applies.

Termination/forfeiture

If Mr. Burke's contract is terminated for cause, Mr. Burke may exercise vested options within one month of
cessation of employment and all unvested options will lapse. In the event of termination without cause prior to
December 2017, including by way of redundancy, all option terms continue as if Mr. Burke’s employment had
not ceased and all options will continue to vest subject to the growth hurdles being met. If Mr. Burke voluntarily
terminates his employment with the Company including by way of resignation or retirement, all options terms
continue for 12 months as if Mr. Burke’s employment had not ceased and on that date all remaining vested and
unvested options shall lapse. This is considered appropriate to allow orderly succession planning and to
recognise that the benefit from activities during the contract accrue in the following 12 months, which also
matches the non-compete period. If Mr. Burke dies or involuntarily terminates his employment with the
Company including by way of early retirement due to ill health, permanent disablement or mental incapacity, the
Company retains the right to allow all option terms to continue as if Mr. Burke’s employment had not ceased and
all options will continue to vest subject to the growth hurdles being met.

There are no provisions for the automatic removal of holding restrictions on the relevant shares in the event of a
change of control of the Company.

Hedging

Consistent with the Corporations Act 2001 and under the terms of the OP, Mr Burke is prohibited from hedging
his unvested options.

(i) Legacy equity-linked performance plan

The Group has a loan arrangement over a 1993 legacy equity-linked performance plan in which Mr. P.M. Harvie was the sole remaining
participant. Dividends were used to repay the interest accrued with any surplus dividend payment used to repay the capital amount of the
loan. All grants to Mr. Harvie under this legacy plan were in his capacity as an executive of the consolidated entity and were prior to him
becoming KMP of the Company. Loans over 64,350 shares were repaid from dividends during 2016 (2015: 128,700 shares) and all loans

over these shares have now been repaid in full.
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4. REMUNERATION OUTCOMES AND CORPORATE PERFORMANCE

The Company's growth strategy continues to be one of development and growth within its portfolio of unique assets. FY2016 saw the
building blocks for the future put in place, with several new initiatives progressing that will see the business continue to deliver strong
cashflows and maintain its commitment to paying dividends.

Disappointing FY2016 results from Wet'n'Wild Sydney and the Film Distribution division were offset by a fifth consecutive year of record
results in Cinema Exhibition, solid results from the Gold Coast Theme Parks and the inclusion of approximately six months of Opia in the
Marketing Solutions division. This saw the Company deliver an increase in trading results for the year despite a decline in attributable net
profit (after material items).

These results and achievements are reflected in executive remuneration outcomes, as outlined below.
(a) Performance against financial metrics

EBITDA, excluding material items of income and expense and discontinued operations $168.8 million

Cash flow return on investment (“CFROI”) 17.37%
Net profit after tax, before material items and discontinued operations (“NPAT") $50.9 million
(b) Performance against non-financial metrics

Non-financial metrics of executive performance cover the achievement of specific operational objectives for the period. These metrics are
focussed on objectives that drive sustainability and position the Company to achieve future shareholder value.

In FY20186, the following key objectives were achieved:
e letter of intent signed to acquire the rights to bring Topgolf to Australia;
e  acquisition of Opia;
¢ management agreement signed with Mission Hills to operate Wet'n'Wild Haikou on Hainan Island in China; and
o formation of Roadshow Rough Diamond to create original long-form television and local feature film content.

Executive remuneration during FY2016 reflected these results, as outlined below.

(i) Short-term incentives

% ‘at-risk’ for % ‘at-risk’ for Executive
Short-term incentive components Executive Directors Committee Members Awarded
CFROI 33.3% 16.7% Partially
NPAT 66.7% 33.3% No
Individual performance 50% Based on individual

The component of short-term incentives relating to NPAT was not awarded as the hurdle was not met, and the component relating to
CFROI was awarded at 86.8% of target. For more detail on the Group's short-term incentive plan, refer to page 15.

(ii) Long-term incentives (“LTI”)
Executive Share Plan

Executive Committee members (other than Directors) can participate in the Executive Share Plan (“ESP”), together with non-KMP senior
executives from across the Group. ESP shares are provided using limited-recourse loans, and prior to FY2017, were granted periodically.
The ESP shares are initially restricted and held as security for the ESP loan. The ESP shares vest in one-third tranches at the end of years
3,4 and 5, and can then be sold (subject to loan repayment). Changes effective for FY2017 are set out earlier in this Report.

The ESP is constructed in such a way that executives receive benefits of any increase in the Company’s share price. They also receive any
dividend payments left over after payment of interest on the limited-recourse loan, until the loan is repaid. For more detail on the ESP, refer
to page 16. The value of the shares held by senior executives under the ESP was reduced in FY2016 by the decline in the Company's
share price.

CEO option plan

The CEO option plan (“OP”) consists of 4.5 million options granted to Mr. Graham Burke in 2012 and vesting occurs in three tranches on
the 1% of March of 2016, 2017 and 2018. Vesting is subject to performance hurdles based on the Compound Annual Growth Rate of both
earnings per share and dividends. For more detail on the OP, refer to page 17. 50% of the tranche due to vest on 1 March 2016 vested
because the Dividend per Share (“DPS”) hurdle was met, and 50% did not vest because the EPS hurdle was not met.

(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The following tables show the total remuneration for all KMP for FY2016 and FY2015 (including FY2015 remuneration details for individuals
who are no longer KMP but were included in the FY2015 Remuneration Report) calculated in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards.
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4. REMUNERATION OUTCOMES AND CORPORATE PERFORMANCE (continued)
(d) Five year company performance
Aggregate Executive KMP Remuneration compared to TSR and Share Price

Share

pri TSR Rem
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-- Total Shareholder Return (on $1,000 invested on 1 July 2011)

Share Price - Ordinary

Total Shareholder Return and adjusted Ordinary share price month end closing price history — IRESS

The above chart reflects the Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) of the Company for the current reporting period and in each of the four
preceding years, based on the investment of $1,000 in ordinary shares on 1 July 2011. It also shows the share price movement of the
Company’s ordinary shares over the five years to 30 June 2016, historically adjusted downwards for returns of capital and special dividend
payments over the period.

The bar chart shows the total aggregate annual remuneration, including STI bonuses, of the Executive Directors and Executive Committee
Members during FY2016 and the four preceding years for the KMP in each year. Excluded from the total aggregate remuneration is the
notional value of share-based payments and any termination or retirement benefits. Over this five year period the Company’s share price
and TSR has improved whilst aggregate remuneration has stabilised and slightly reduced due to the composition of the KMP in prior years.

Executive KMP Non-discretionary STI Remuneration compared to NPAT and CFROI

NPAT . CFROI Rem
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The STI amounts for Executive KMP shown in the above chart represent the STI amounts accrued for the year to which the payment
relates. The chart reflects the total aggregate annual STI bonus remuneration of the Executive Directors and Executive Committee
Members for the 2016 financial year and each of the four preceding years, based on KPIs that are directly linked to the financial
performance of the Group. The STI bonus amounts shown in the chart above have been normalised where applicable to exclude
discretionary STI bonus amounts for the achievement of individual, personal KPIs of relevant Executive KMP, so that the STI bonus
payments displayed in the chart above are only those elements that relate to Group's financial performance benchmarks for the relevant
year.

The chart also shows the Company’s Net Profit After Tax (“NPAT") over the relevant five year period, excluding material items and
discontinued operations, as reported for the year in relation to which the remuneration was paid. The chart also shows Cash Flow Return
on Investment (“CFROI") over the relevant five year period.

The reduction in the quantum of STI bonus payments over recent years reflects the overall performance of the Company on these NPAT
and CFROI hurdles and also due to the change in the composition of the Executive Committee over the five year period. The above chart
demonstrates the solid financial performance of the Company over a five year period and broadly tracks the variable ‘at-risk’ STI
performance outcomes for the Executive Directors and Executive Committee Members and reflects the alignment of the interests of those
relevant Executives with those of shareholders.
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5. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

Compensation and other terms of employment for the Group's Executives are formalised in employment contracts, which are reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee. The major provisions of the employment contracts relating to compensation are as set out below.

(a) Executive Directors

The employment contracts of VRL's two Co-Executive Chairmen and Co-Chief Executive Officers, Mr. Robert Kirby and Mr. Graham Burke,
set out a CPI adjusted base salary package inclusive of superannuation and car allowance, and an annual capped incentive performance
bonus payable on the Company achieving certain financial performance targets. Previously both Mr. Burke and Mr. Kirby could seek a
potential loan from the Company of up to $2 million on terms and conditions to be agreed by the Remuneration Committee of the Company,
but this has been removed from 1 July 2016, at which time each their base salary packages were also adjusted downwards by $968,655
and the STl increased to 100% of base salary subject to revised performance conditions.

Mr. Graham Burke’s contract expires on 1 December 2017 and also provides for the granting of four and a half million options over ordinary
shares with appropriate exercise hurdles, which options were issued on 29 November 2012. The contract includes a global twelve month
non-compete clause, and does not provide for pre-determined compensation in the event of termination.

(b) Executive Committee

Mr. C.J. Kirby, Mr. S.T. Phillipson, Ms. J.E. Raffe and Mr. AW. Bennallack have ongoing employment agreements with the Company with
no fixed expiry dates. These provide for base salary and superannuation, a Company motor vehicle provided to Ms. Raffe and Mr.
Bennallack and a car allowance provided to Mr. C.J. Kirby. All Executive Committee Members are also eligible to be paid an annual
performance bonus.

Payment for termination without cause is equal to twelve months of salary and the Executive Committee Member is restrained from
competitive employment during that period. The Group may terminate an employment contract at any time without notice if serious
misconduct has occurred. Where termination with cause occurs, the Executive is only entitled to that portion of remuneration which is fixed,
and only up to the date of termination. On termination with cause, any unexercisable LTI ESP shares are immediately forfeited and all

remaining loans over such LTI shares must be repaid within 6 months of termination.

6. KMP TRANSACTIONS AND HOLDINGS

(a) Ordinary shares held by KMP

2016
Balance at the Granted as On exe_rcise of Net change other Balance at the end
start of the year remuneration’ options etc g of the year

Directors
Robert G. Kirby? 68,563,136 - - 150,000 68,713,136
Graham W. Burke? 68,563,136 - 750,000 (600,000) 68,713,136
John R. Kirby? 68,563,136 - - 150,000 68,713,136
David J. Evans 111,971 - - - 111,971
Peter D. Jonson® 93,372 659 - (23,508) 70,523
Peter M. Harvie* 235,950 - 64,350 - 300,300
Robert Le Tet 126,082 24,611 - - 150,693
Tim Antonie 22,485 - - - 22,485
Jennifer Fox Gambrell® - - - - -
Executives
Julie E. Raffe - - - - -
Clark J. Kirby 2,500 - - (2,500) -
Simon T. Phillipson 200,000 - - - 200,000
Alistair Bennallack® - - - - -
2015

Balance at the Granted as On exercise of Balance at the end

start of the year remuneration’ options Net change other of the year

Directors
Robert G. Kirby? 68,563,136 - - - 68,563,136
Graham W. Burke? 68,563,136 - - - 68,563,136
John R. Kirby? 68,563,136 - - - 68,563,136
David J. Evans 111,971 - - - 111,971
Peter D. Jonson 90,483 2,889 - - 93,372
D. Barry Reardon’ 28,552 - - - 28,552
Peter M. Harvie 107,250 - 128,700 - 235,950
Robert Le Tet 104,204 21,878 - - 126,082
Tim Antonie 22,485 - - - 22,485
Executives
Julie E. Raffe - - - - -
Clark J. Kirby 2,500 - - - 2,500
Simon T. Phillipson 200,000 - - - 200,000
David Kindlen® 23,025 - - - 23,025
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6. KMP TRANSACTIONS AND HOLDINGS (continued)
(a) Ordinary shares held by KMP (continued)

" Allotments under Directors’ Share Plan from Directors Fees.
2 Refer also to the Directors’ Report disclosures for relevant interests of Directors, in relation to the 100% ownership of the immediate and

ultimate parent entities of VRL.
® Retired on 19 November 2015 and ceased as KMP
4 Retired on 3 February 2016 and ceased as KMP

® Appointed as KMP on 19 November 2015

© Appointed as KMP on 26 October 2015
7 Retired on 20 November 2014 and ceased as KMP
8 Ceased as KMP on 23 February 2015

(b) ‘In substance options’ held by KMP

2016
Vested and Vested and
Balance at Balance at . .
the start of Granted as Options Net change  the end of :txtitles:glzf uar:et)t(\t:rg:‘sglzjlfe
Name the year remuneration  Exercised other the year the year the year
Directors
Peter M. Harvie' 264,350 - (64,350) - 200,000 200,000 -
Executives
Julie E. Raffe 702,360 - - - 702,360 502,360 -
Simon T. Phillipson 300,000 - - - 300,000 133,334 -
Clark J. Kirby 600,000 - - (100,000) 500,000 100,000 -
Alistair Bennallack? 150,000 - - (16,666) 133,334 - -
2015
Vested and Vested and
Balance at Balance at . .
the start of Granted as Options Net change  the end of :txti':'::glgf u;;ea«:r:;s:t;lfe
Name the year remuneration  Exercised other the year the year the year
Directors
Peter M. Harvie' 393,050 - (128,700) - 264,350 264,350 -
Executives
Julie E. Raffe 702,360 - - - 702,360 332,360 -
Simon T. Phillipson 200,000 100,000 - - 300,000 66,667 -
Clark J. Kirby 300,000 300,000 - - 600,000 100,000 -
David Kindlen® 250,000 - - - 250,000 183,333 -
! Retired on 3 February 2016 and ceased as KMP. Includes repayment of loan from dividends during the year.
2 Appointed as KMP on 26 October 2015
% Ceased as KMP on 23 February 2015
(c) Options over ordinary shares held by KMP
2016
Balance at Balance at Vested and Vested and
start of the Granted as Options Net Change the end of exercisable unexercisable
Name ear remuneration Exercised Other the vear at the end of at the end of
Y y the year the year
Directors
Graham W. Burke 4,500,000 - (750,000) (750,000) 3,000,000 - -
2015
Vested and Vested and
thz:r::‘et:; Granted as Options Net Change tB;‘:a;:c? :: exercisable at unexercisable
remuneration Exercised Other the end of the  at the end of
Name year the year
year the year
Directors
Graham W. Burke 4,500,000 - - - 4,500,000 - -

7. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

(a) Remuneration summary

The Board sets Non-Executive Director remuneration at a level which provides the Company with the ability to attract and retain
appropriately qualified and experienced Non-Executive Directors of the highest calibre, at an acceptable cost to shareholders.

The Constitution of the Company and the ASX Listing Rules specify that the annual aggregate remuneration of Non-Executive Directors
shall be determined from time to time by shareholders in general meeting. An amount not exceeding the annual aggregate remuneration so
determined is then divided between the Non-Executive Directors as agreed.



VILLAGE ROADSHOW LIMITED 24
ABN 43 010 672 054
REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUED)

7. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Remuneration summary (continued)

The latest determination was at the Annual General Meeting held on 15 November 2012, when shareholders approved an aggregate
remuneration level for Non-Executive Directors of $1,300,000 per annum. This aggregate fee level includes any compensation paid to Non-
Executive Directors who may serve on Boards of the consolidated entity. Aggregate payments to Non-Executive Directors have never
exceeded the total pool approved by shareholders.

Each Non-Executive Director receives a fee for being a Director of the Company. An additional fee is also paid for each Board Committee
or major subsidiary or affiliate on which a Non-Executive Director serves. The payment of additional fees for serving on a Committee or
subsidiary or affiliate Board recognises the additional time commitment required by that Non-Executive Director.

To preserve the independence and impartiality of Non-Executive Directors, no element of Non-Executive Director remuneration is ‘at-risk’
based on the performance of the Company and does not incorporate any bonus or incentive element.

Board and Committee fees are set by reference to a number of relevant considerations including the responsibilities and risks attaching to
the role, the time commitment expected of Non-Executive Directors, fees paid by peer-sized companies and independent advice received
from external advisors. The remuneration arrangements of Non-Executive Directors are periodically reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee to ensure they remain in line with general industry practice, the last review having taken effect from July 2012.

From July 2012, Non-Executive Directors have been paid at the rate of $100,000 per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. In addition, Non-
Executive Directors receive an additional $20,000 per annum for each Board Committee on which they serve. The Lead Independent
Director and the Deputy Chairman receive an additional $30,000 per annum and Committee Chairs are paid at a rate of 50% above other
Committee members in recognition of the additional workload.

The Company does not have and never has had a retirement benefit scheme for Non-Executive Directors, other than their individual
statutory superannuation benefits which, where applicable, are included as part of the aggregate fee for Non-Executive Directors as
remuneration.

(b) Directors’ Share Plan

The Company considers it appropriate for Non-Executive Directors to have a stake in the Company and encourages Non-Executive
Directors to hold shares.

The Directors’ Share Plan (“DSP”), effective from 1 January 2011 and renewed by shareholders at the 2013 Annual General Meeting of the
Company, enables Non-Executive Directors to salary sacrifice some or all of their fees into ordinary shares in the Company. The shares
are allotted on a salary sacrifice basis at the weighted average market price on ASX on the first 5 trading days of the third month of the
relevant quarter, rounded up to the next whole cent. Non-Executive Directors can vary their participation in the DSP each calendar year.
The various allotments during the year under the DSP are set out in the table below.

Name Allotment Date No. shares Issue Price
P.D. Jonson 8 September 2015 659 $7.01
R. Le Tet 8 September 2015 4,992 $7.01
8 December 2015 5,307 $6.81

8 March 2016 7,197 $5.21

8 June 2016 7,115 $5.27

The ASX is notified of the various share, option and ‘in substance option’ holdings of all Directors, and they are also set out on page 3 of the
Directors’ Report.

8. OTHER TRANSACTIONS WITH KMP

Peninsula Cinemas Pty. Ltd. ("Peninsula Cinemas"), which are non-competing cinemas owned by an entity associated with Mr. R.G. Kirby,
exhibit films supplied by the Film Distribution division of the VRL group on arm's length terms and conditions. The total amount charged by
the VRL group for the year ended 30 June 2016 was $240,290 (2015: $354,456). In addition, Peninsula Cinemas received amounts from
external parties on behalf of the VRL group, which were then paid to the VRL group, which in the year ended 30 June 2016 totalled
$222,067 (2015: $112,149). Other net reimbursement amounts paid by Peninsula Cinemas to the VRL group in relation to operational
cinema matters in the year ended 30 June 2016 totalled $5,558 (2015: $22,011 paid to Peninsula Cinemas).

The VRL group purchased wine from Yabby Lake International Pty. Ltd., an entity in which family members of Mr. R.G. Kirby have an
economic interest. The total purchases were $330,540 for the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: $318,786). The wine purchased was
mainly for the Cinema Exhibition division's Gold Class cinemas and for Corporate functions. These transactions were carried out under
arm's length terms and conditions.

The VRL group purchased swimwear from Garyson Nominees Pty. Ltd., an entity associated with Mr. G.W. Burke. The total purchases
were $31,300 for the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: $30,483). The swimwear was purchased on an arm's length basis as merchandise
for resale by the Theme Parks division.

The Film Distribution division of the VRL group distributes a number of older film titles in which Village Roadshow Corporation Pty. Ltd.
(“VRC"), the Company's immediate parent entity, has economic interests. During the year ended 30 June 2016, $53,086 (2015: Nil) was
paid in accumulated film royalties to VRC for the period from July 2006 to December 2015.

The VRL group recharged occupancy costs and other net recharges for services provided and received, on an arm's length basis, to a
number of entities associated (either individually or collectively) with Messrs. R.G. Kirby, J.R. Kirby and G.W. Burke. The total net amount
charged for the various occupancy and other services in the year ended 30 June 2016 was $149,417 (2015: $115,471). As at 30 June
2016, the total amount owing by the related parties detailed above, and included in current assets of the VRL group, was $19,405 (2015:
$28,774), and the total amount owing by the VRL group to the related parties detailed above, and included in current liabilities, was $8,112
(2015: $27,337).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2016

Notes 2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Continuing operations
Income
Revenues 2(a) 1,039,865 967,625
Other income 2(b) 33,163 37,896
Expenses excluding finance costs 2(d) (997,713) (925,608)
Finance costs 2(e) (34,655) (30,381)
Share of net (losses) profits of equity-accounted investments 2(c) (9,170) 9,454
Profit from continuing operations before
income tax expense 31,490 58,986
Income tax expense 4 (14,928) (18,752)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 16,562 40,234
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax - -
Net profit for the year 16,562 40,234
Profit (loss) for the year is attributable to:
Non-controlling interest 899 (3,690)
Owners of the parent 15,663 43,924
16,562 40,234
Other comprehensive (expense) income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Cash flow hedges 20 (4,594) 2,042
Foreign currency translation 20 (1,291) 899
Other comprehensive (exp ) income for the year after tax (5,885) 2,941
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,677 43,175
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year is attributable to:
Non-controlling interest 899 (3,690)
Owners of the parent 9,778 46,865
10,677 43,175
Earnings per share (cents per share)
For profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of Village Roadshow Limited:
Basic earnings per share 3 9.8 cents 27.5 cents
Diluted earnings per share 3 9.7 cents 27.2 cents
For profit from continuing operations for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of Village Roadshow Limited:
Basic earnings per share 3 9.8 cents 27.5 cents
Diluted earnings per share 3 9.7 cents 27.2 cents

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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VILLAGE ROADSHOW LIMITED

ABN 43 010 672 054
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2016
Notes 2016 2015
$'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6(a) 64,338 95,335
Trade and other receivables 7 158,876 143,970
Inventories 8 24,929 22,713
Current tax assets 6,456 13
Film distribution royalties 10(b) 75,546 . 67,312
Derivatives 30(e) 1,260 6,526
Other 10(a) 12,131 31,323
Total current assets 343,536 367,192
Non-Current Assets
Trade and other receivables 7 15,254 15,894
Goodwill and other intangible assets 9 389,024 338,184
Investments - equity-accounted 11 48,305 42,331
Available-for-sale investments 720 1,056
Property, plant & equipment 14 686,819 657,085
Deferred tax assets 4(c) 2,508 1,097
Film distribution royalties 10(b) 69,039 72,638
Other 10(a) 471 839
Total non-current assets 1,212,140 1,129,124
Total assets 1,655,676 1,496,316
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 258,697 294,175
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 1,115 29,519
Income tax payable 187 366
Provisions 17 40,690 36,876
Derivatives 30(e) 5,532 3,019
Other 18 60,360 48,152
Total current liabilities 366,581 412,107
Non-Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 47,036 31,622
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 597,942 467,972
Deferred tax liabilities 4(c) 40,736 46,789
Provisions 17 8,724 8,572
Derivatives 30(e) 1,076 2,292
Other 18 13,222 1,319
Total non-current liabilities 708,736 558,566
Total liabilities 1,075,317 970,673
Net assets 480,359 525,643
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent:
Contributed equity 19 224,234 220,406
Reserves 20 81,539 102,099
Retained earnings 20 159,564 188,887
Parent interests 465,337 511,392
Non-controlling interest 21 15,022 14,251
Total equity 480,359 525,643

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



VILLAGE ROADSHOW LIMITED

ABN 43 010 672 054

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Notes 2016 2015
$'000 $'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 1,159,275 1,046,403
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,036,626) (887,648)
Dividends and distributions received 7,496 6,480
Interest and other items of similar nature received 3,463 4,186
Finance costs (28,428) (28,759)
Income taxes paid (22,874) (29,379)
Net cash flows from operating activities 6(b) 82,306 111,283
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant & equipment © (87,086) (63,005)
Purchases of software & other intangibles (11,851) (17,987)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 211 669
Purchase of investments / businesses (59,313) (16,060)
Proceeds from sale of investments / businesses 1,950 7,194
Government grants received 10,763 -
Loans to (or repaid to) other entities (22,497) (4,302)
Loans from (or repaid by) other entities 2,969 1,586
Net cash flows used in investing activities (164,854) (91,905)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings 113,400 29,000
Proceeds from issues of shares 2,783 158
Repayment of borrowings / derivatives (17,804) (15,961)
Dividends and distributions paid (44,986) (68,590)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 53,393 (55,393)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (29,155) (36,015)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 95,335 130,382
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash (1,842) 968
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 6(a) 64,338 95,335
Total cash classified as:
Continuing operations 64,338 95,335
Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 64,338 95,335

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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VILLAGE ROADSHOW LIMITED

ABN 43 010 672 054

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2016

1

(a)

(b)
U}
(i)

(iif)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial report of Village Roadshow Limited ("the Company" or "VRL") for the year ended 30 June 2016 was authorised for issue on 15 September 2016, in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors. VRL is a for-profit entity incorporated in Australia and limited by shares, which are publicly traded on the Australian
Securities Exchange. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are described in Note 1(c)(xxix).

Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian
Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements. The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
derivatives and any available for sale investments that are measured at fair value.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000), unless stated otherwise, under the option
available to the Company under ASIC Corporations Instrument 2016/191. The Company is an entity to which the Instrument applies.

The presentation and classification of comparative items in the financial report have been adjusted where appropriate to ensure that the disclosures are consistent with
the current period.

Statement of compliance and new accounting standards and interpretations
The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

The Group has adopted the following new and amended Australian Accounting Standards and Australian Accounting Standards Board ("AASB") Interpretations in the
current financial year:

- AASB 2015-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Arising From the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality
- AASB 2015-5: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Investment Entities - Applying the Consolidation Exception

Adoption of these amended Accounting Standards did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

A number of standards and interpretations have been issued by the AASB or the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), which are effective for financial
years after 30 June 2016. Further details are as follows:

- AASB 9: Financial Instruments: AASB 9 (December 2014) is a new standard which replaces AASB 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement , and
includes a model for classification and measurement, a single, forward-looking 'expected loss' impairment model and a substantially-reformed approach to hedge
accounting. Application date of this standard is 1 January 2018, and application date for the Group is 1 July 2018. The impact of adoption of this standard on the
Group's financial results has not yet been assessed.

- AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 2016-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard - Clarifications to AASB 15: The core principle
of AASB 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Application date of these standards is 1 January 2018, and application date for the Group is 1
July 2018. The impact of adoption of these standards on the Group's financial results have not yet been assessed.

- AASB 16: Leases: AASB 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Application date of this standard is 1 January 2019, and application date for the Group is 1 July 2019. The
impact of adoption of this standard on the Group's financial results has not yet been assessed.

- AASB 1057: Application of Australian Accounting Standards: The AASB has reissued most of its Standards and Interpretations following editorial changes to more
closely align them to Standards issued by the IASB. This standard specifies the types of entities and financial statements to which Australian Accounting Standards
apply. Application date of this amendment is 1 January 2016, and application date for the Group is 1 July 2016. There will be no material impact on the Group as a
result of this standard.

- AASB 2014-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations: This is an amendment to AASB 11 and
provides guidance on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations in which the activity constitutes a business. Application date of this amendment is 1
January 2016, and application date for the Group is 1 July 2016. There will be no material impact on the Group as a result of this standard.

- AASB 2014-4: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation: This is a clarification of the
use of revenue based methods to calculate the depreciation of assets and amortisation of intangible assets. Application date of this amendment is 1 January 2016, and
application date for the Group is 1 July 2016. There will be no material impact on the Group as a result of this standard.

- AASB 2015-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 2012-2014 Cycle: Amendments to AASB
5, AASB 7, AASB 119 and AASB 134 and clarifies a number of issues and disclosure requirements contained within these standards. Application date of this standard
is 1 January 2016, and application date for the Group is 1 July 2016. There will be no material impact on the Group as a result of this standard.

- AASB 2015-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative : This is an amendment to AASB 101 and provides clarifications on a number of
issues to improve financial statement disclosures. Application date of this standard is 1 January 2016, and application date for the Group is 1 July 2016. This standard
has no financial impact on the Group as it relates to disclosures only.

- AASB 2016-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses: This is an amendment to AASB 112 and
provides clarification on the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value. Application date of this
standard is 1 January 2017, and application date for the Group is 1 July 2017. The impact of adoption of this standard on the Group's financial results has not yet been
assessed.

- AASB 2016-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative: This is an amendment to AASB 107 and requires disclosures of changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. Application date of this standard is 1 January 2017,
and application date for the Group is 1 July 2017. This standard has no financial impact on the Group as it relates to disclosures only.

- AASB 2016-5: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions: This is an amendment to
AASB 2 and addresses implementation issues encountered by stakeholders for certain types of share-based payment transactions. Application date of this standard is
1 January 2018, and application date for the Group is 1 July 2018. The impact of adoption of this standard on the Group's financial results has not been assessed.

The impacts of all other standards and amendments to accounting standards that have been issued by the AASB but are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June
2016, have been determined as having no significant impact on the financial results of the Group.
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VILLAGE ROADSHOW LIMITED

ABN 43 010 672 054

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 30 June 2016

1
(c)
U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(]

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Village Roadshow Limited and its subsidiaries ("the Group", "VRL group" or "consolidated
entity") as at 30 June each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent
accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial report, all inter-company balances and transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions have been eliminated in full. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer, the liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree
and the equity issued by the acquirer, and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic conditions, the Group’s operating or accounting policies and other pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured at fair value as at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with AASB 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured.

An option (put or call) granted over the remaining interest of a business combination where 100% has not been acquired gives rise to a financial liability for the present
value of the estimated redemption amount. This amount, less the calculated non-controlling interest amount, gives rise to a debit which is recognised in equity, in the
Controlled Entity Acquisition Reserve. During each financial reporting period, non-controlling interests continue to receive an allocation of profit or loss which is
recognised within equity. At each balance sheet date, the non-controlling interest in equity is derecognised, and transferred to the financial liability and any difference
between the change in fair value of the financial liability and the non-controlling interest derecognised is charged or credited to the Controlled Entity Acquisition Reserve.

Revenue recogpnition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership are considered passed to the buyer at the time of delivery of the goods to the customer.

(b) Rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised when control of a right to be compensated for the services has been attained by reference to the stage of
completion. Where contracts span more than one reporting period, the stage of completion is based on an assessment of the value of work performed at that date.

(c) Interest income

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest rate method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating
the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

(d) Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the-payment is established.

(e) Unearned income

Income relating to future periods is initially recorded as unearned income, and is then recognised as revenue over the relevant periods of admission or rendering of
other services.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except where they are directly attributable to qualifying assets. Where directly attributable to a qualifying asset, borrowing
costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease
at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the total lease expense.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. An impairment provision is made
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the debts. Bad debts are written off when identified. Objective evidence takes into account
financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or if there are debts outstanding longer than agreed terms.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and are accounted for on a first in first out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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1
(c)
(ix)

(x)

(i)

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, caps and collars (floors and caps) to hedge its risks
associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities
when their fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that qualify as effective cash flow hedges, are taken directly to profit or loss for
the year. The fair values of forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, caps and collars are determined by reference to valuations provided by the relevant
counterparties, which are reviewed for reasonableness by the Group using discounted cash flow models. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that are attributable either to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or to a forecast transaction. A hedge of the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is accounted for as a
cash flow hedge.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and
the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the
hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or
cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they
were designated.

Cash flow hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to variability in cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction and that could affect profit or loss. Where a hedge meets the strict criteria for hedge accounting, the effective portion of the gain
or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss.

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged income or
expenses are recognised or when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or liability, the amounts taken to other
comprehensive income are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred to profit or loss. If the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction occurs. If the related transaction is not expected to occur, the amount is
taken to profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

(b) Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value (because its fair value cannot
be reliably measured), or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset.

(c) Available-for-sale investments at fair value

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale investment at fair value is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses for equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in profit.

Foreign currency translation
Both the functional and presentation currency of the Company and the majority of its Australian subsidiaries is Australian dollars ($). Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

All exchange differences in the consolidated financial report are taken to profit or loss with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings that provide a
hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to other comprehensive income until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they
are recognised in profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

As at the reporting date the assets and liabilities of subsidiaries with functional currencies other than Australian dollars are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and their profit or loss items are translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the year. The
exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or

geographical area of operations, is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately on the face of the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell if the carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction. These assets are not depreciated or amortised following classification as held for sale. For an asset or
disposal group to be classified as held for sale, it must be available for sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly probable.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting in the consolidated financial statements. An
associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or joint venture is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate or joint venture. Goodwill relating to an associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is not amortised. After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture. The consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects the Group's share of the results
of operations of the associate or joint venture.

Where there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar reporting dates or accounting policies that may exist.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture, including any unsecured long-term
receivables and loans, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating
to the arrangement. The Group recognises its interest in joint operations by recognising its share of the assets that the operations control and the liabilities incurred.
The Group also recognises its share of the expenses incurred and the income that the operations earn from the sale of goods or services.

Income tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

- when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss; or

- when the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or interests in joint ventures, and the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

- when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss; or

- when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or interests in joint ventures, in which case a deferred tax
asset is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income, and not in profit or loss. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax Consolidation

For Australian income tax purposes, various entities in the Group have formed a Tax Consolidated group, and have executed a combined Tax Sharing and Tax Funding
Agreement (“TSA”) in order to allocate income tax expense to the relevant wholly-owned entities predominantly on a stand-alone basis. In addition, the TSA provides for
the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its income tax payment obligations to the Australian Taxation Office.

Tax effect accounting by members of the tax consolidated group

Under the terms of the TSA, wholly owned entities compensate the head entity for any current tax payable assumed and are compensated for any current tax
receivable, and are also compensated for deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses or unused tax credits that are recognised on transfer to the parent entity
under tax consolidation legislation. The funding amounts are determined at the end of each six month reporting period by reference to the amounts recognised in the
wholly-owned entities' financial statements, determined predominantly on a stand alone basis. Amounts receivable or payable under the TSA are included with other
amounts receivable or payable between entities in the Group.

Other taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:
- when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

- receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST components of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which are
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are classified as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant & equipment

Property, plant & equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts
that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the parts is incurred. Similarly, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as follows:

- Buildings and improvements are depreciated over the lesser of any relevant lease term and 40 years, using the straight line method.
- Plant, equipment and vehicles are depreciated over periods of between three and 25 years using the straight line or reducing balance method.
Pooled animals are classified as part of property, plant and equipment and are not depreciated.

The assets' residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end, and when acquired as part of a
business combination.

Impairment

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, with recoverable amount being estimated when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, unless
the asset's value in use can be estimated to be close to its fair value.

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The asset or cash-generating unit is then
written down to its recoverable amount.

De-recognition and disposal
An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognised.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, when allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

In accordance with AASB 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures, financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on financial assets held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. It
should be noted that even though these assets are classified as held for trading (in accordance with AASB 139 terminology), the Group is not involved in speculative
activities and only uses derivatives for risk management purposes.

(b) Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. Investments that are intended to be held-to-
maturity, such as bonds, are subsequently measured at amortised cost. This cost is computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. This
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the investments are de-recognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. The Group does not currently have held-to-maturity investments.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or déterminable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are de-recognised or impaired.

(d) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are those derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or not classified as any of the three preceding categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale investments are either carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, or are measured at fair value with gains or
losses being recognised in other comprehensive income until the investments are de-recognised or until the investments are determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair values of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets are determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business
on the reporting date.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the fair value of the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

- represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes; and
- is not larger than an operating segment determined in accordance with AASB 8: Operating Segments .

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to which the goodwill relates. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

When goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and an operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
manner is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not subsequently reversed.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially measured at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is charged against profits in the year in which the expenditure
is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the nature of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed each reporting period to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and is thus accounted for on a
prospective basis.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows:

Brand Names

Useful lives: Indefinite

Amortisation method used: No amortisation

Internally generated or acquired: Acquired

Impairment testing: Annually and more frequently when an indication of impairment exists.

Film Distribution Rights

Useful lives: Finite

Amortisation method used: Amortised over estimated useful lives which range from 1 to 25 years.

Internally generated or acquired: Acquired

Impairment testing: When an indication of impairment exists. The amortisation method and remaining useful life are reviewed at each financial year-end.
Software and Other Intangibles

Useful lives: Finite

Amortisation method used: Amortised over estimated useful lives which range from 2 to 25 years. The estimated useful life remaining is in the range of 2 to 19 years.
Internally generated or acquired: Acquired

Impairment testing: When an indication of impairment exists. The amortisation method and remaining useful life are reviewed at each financial year-end.

Assets that are classified as having an indefinite life are the brand names in the Theme Parks division. This conclusion has been based on the length of time that the
brands have been in existence, and the fact that they have an established market presence.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets and the asset's value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value. In such cases the asset is tested for impairment as part
of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-
generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the
estimated price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Impairment losses relating to continuing operations are recognised in those expense categories consistent with the nature of the impaired
asset unless the asset is carried at revalued amount (in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease).

An assessment is also made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. Other than goodwill, a previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying
amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Trade and other payables
Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial
year that are unpaid, and arise when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are de-recognised.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost.

Employee leave benefits

Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Provision is made for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, and annual leave in respect of employees' services up to the reporting date. They are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and are
measured at the rates paid or payable.

Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and any other employee entitlements expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporting date
are measured at their nominal amounts. All other employee benefit liabilities are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflow to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the employee share incentive scheme is being charged as an employee benefits
expense. Refer to Note 1(c)(xxvi) for the share-based payment transactions policy.

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels, experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on high quality
corporate bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Share-based payment transactions

The Group provides benefits to employees (including senior executives) of the Group in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions). The plans currently in place to provide these benefits are the Company’s Executive Share Plan
and Loan Facility and the 2012 Option Plan for the Company's Chief Executive Officer. The grant of rights under the Executive Share Plan and Loan Facility are treated
as "in substance options”, even where the equity instrument is not an option.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using either the Monte Carlo, binomial or Black-Scholes models. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of
any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of VRL (market conditions) if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting period).

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. No adjustment is made for the likelihood of market performance conditions
being met as the effect of these conditions is included in the determination of fair value at grant date. The profit or loss charge or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period. No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for
awards where vesting is only conditional upon a market condition.

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at
the date of modification.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share (refer Note 3).

Shares in the Group relating to the various employee share plans and which are subject to non-recourse loans are deducted from equity. Refer Note 25 for share-based
payment disclosures relating to "in substance options”.

Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds. Incremental costs directly attributable to the buyback of shares are shown in equity, net of tax, as part of the buyback cost.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and
preference share dividends, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

When there are potential ordinary shares that are dilutive, diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted for:

- costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends;

- the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as expenses; and

- other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of potential ordinary shares;
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Segment reporting

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the executive management team (the chief operating
decision maker) in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.

Discrete financial information about each of these segments is reported to the executive management team on a monthly basis. These operating segments are then
aggregated based on similar economic characteristics to form the following reportable segments:

- Theme Parks Theme park and water park operations

- Cinema Exhibition Cinema exhibition operations

- Film Distribution Film and DVD distribution operations

- Marketing Solutions Sales promotion and loyalty program operations

- Other Other represents financial information which is not allocated to the reportable segments.

A geographic region is identified when products or services are provided within a particular economic environment subject to risks and returns that are different from
those segments operating in other economic environments. Revenue from geographic locations is attributed to geographic location based on the location of the
customers.

The segment revenue that is disclosed to the chief operating decision maker in Note 29 is in accordance with IFRS. Inter-segment revenue applies the same revenue
recognition principles as per Note (1)(c)(iii).

Financial guarantees

The fair values of financial guarantee contracts as disclosed in Note 28 have been assessed using a probability weighted discounted cash flow approach. In order to
estimate the fair value under this approach the following assumptions were made:

- Probability of Default: This represents the likelihood of the guaranteed party defaulting in the remaining guarantee period and is assessed based on historical
default rates of companies rated by Standard & Poors. The probability of default used for the years ended 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015 was 25.8%.

- Recovery Rate: This represents the estimated proportion of the exposure that is expected to be recovered in the event of a default by the guaranteed party and is
estimated based on the business of the guaranteed parties. The recovery rate used for the years ended 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015 was 60%.

The values of the financial guarantees over each future year of the guarantees' lives is discounted over the contractual term of the guarantees to reporting date to
determine the fair values. The contractual term of the guarantees matches the underlying obligations to which they relate. The financial guarantee liabilities determined
using this method are then amortised over the remaining contractual term of the guarantees.

Film distribution royalties

Film distribution royalties represent the consolidated entity's minimum guaranteed royalty commitments to licensors in return for the acquisition of distribution rights.
The commitments can be for either the life of contract or part thereof. On entering into the agreement the commitments are brought to account in the statement of
financial position as assets and liabilities (the latter in respect of any unpaid components).

Film distribution royalties are expensed in line with the exploitation of the distribution rights. At the time the distribution rights are first exploited, a forecast of the lifetime
earnings and royalties is made and any impairment is immediately taken to profit or loss. The forecast royalties are then reviewed and revised over the commitment
period to ensure the carrying amount is equal to the lesser of the expected future royalties to be generated or the balance of the minimum guaranteed royalties.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. Government grants relating to an asset is
presented in the statement of financial position as unearned revenue.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on judgements, estimates and assumptions of future events. The key judgements,
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual
reporting period are:

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated. The assumptions used in this estimation
of recoverable amount and the carrying amount of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are disclosed in Note 9.

Share-based payment transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial option pricing model, a Monte Carlo simulation technique or the Black-Scholes model, as appropriate,
using the assumptions detailed in Note 25.

Impairment of film distribution royalties

The Group determines whether film distribution royalties are impaired at least at each reporting date. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the film
distribution royalties based on calculations of the discounted cash flows expected to be received in relation to the royalties.

Income Taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Australia and jurisdictions where it has foreign operations. Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due (refer to Note 22(a)(iv)). Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and indefinite life intangibles
The group assesses for impairment of assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group and to the particular asset that may lead to
impairment. If an impairment trigger is identified, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined.
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
2 REVENUE AND EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(@) Revenue
Sale of goods 389,582 331,982
Rendering of services 647,702 631,579
Finance revenue 2,572 4,064
Dividends received 9 -
Total revenues 1,039,865 967,625
(b) Other income
Management fees from -
Other entities 7,598 7,180
Associates 685 722
Net gains on disposal of investments 620 5,152
Net gains on disposal of property, plant & equipment - ' 62
Unearned revenue written back 6,787 5,151
Commissions / fees received 5,545 4,695
Other 11,928 14,934
Total other income 33,163 37,896
(c) Share of net (losses) profits of equity-accounted investments
Share of net (losses) profits of equity-accounted investments (refer Note 11) (9,170) 9,454
(d) Expenses excluding finance costs
Employee expenses -
Employee benefits 18,894 17,394
Defined contribution superannuation expense 17,002 16,063
Share-based payment expense 891 1,632
Remuneration and other employee expenses 209,485 198,480
Total employee expenses 246,272 233,469
Cost of goods sold 123,161 91,858
Occupancy expenses -
Operating lease rental - minimum lease payments 49,187 45,029
Operating lease rental - contingent rental payments 4,344 3,784
Other occupancy expenses 23,198 22,881
Total occupancy expenses 76,729 71,694
Film hire and other film expenses 265,330 242,951
Depreciation of -
Buildings & improvements 3,100 2,962
Plant, equipment & vehicles 41,036 42,589
Amortisation of -
Leasehold improvements 12,015 11,875
Deferred expenditure - 120
Software & other intangibles 15,457 10,667
Total depreciation and amortisation 71,608 68,213
Net loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment 80 -
Net foreign currency (gains) losses (913) 390
Impairment and other non-cash adjustments1 (refer material items of income and expense in Reconciliation
of Results contained in Directors' Report) 7,132 9,128
Management and services fees paid 3,531 3,268
Insurance expenses 4,122 4,287
Theme park operating expenses 29,277 26,891
Repairs and maintenance 15,290 14,845
Consulting fees 7,638 8,988
Advertising and promotions 106,434 109,456
Regulatory and licensing fees 6,521 5,840
Telecommunications 3,558 3,065
Restructuring costs (refer material items of income and expense in Reconciliation of Results contained
in Directors' Report) 3,943 3,661
Legal settlement and expenses (refer material items of income and expense in Reconciliation of Results
contained in Directors' Report) - 2,706
Other legal expenses 740 1,050
General and administration expenses -
Provision for doubtful debts 88 180
Bad debts written off 498 157
Other general and administration expenses 26,674 23,511
Total general and administration expenses 27,260 23,848
Total expenses excluding finance costs 997,713 925,608

1 Following a detailed analysis of projects and systems in the Marketing Solutions segment in the year ended 30 June 2016, non-cash adjustments totalling $4.3m after
tax were recognised in relation to work in progress and inventories.
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
2 REVENUE AND EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (continued)
(e) Finance costs ,
Total finance costs before finance restructuring costs 30,411 30,381
Finance restructuring costs (refer material items of income and expense in Reconciliation of
Results contained in Directors' Report) 4,244 -
Total finance costs 34,655 30,381

3  EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

2016 2015
(a) Earnings per share:
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of VRL
Basic EPS 9.8 cents 27.5 cents
Diluted EPS 9.7 cents 27.2 cents
Net profit from continuing operations attributable to ordinary equity holders of VRL
Basic EPS 9.8 cents 27.5 cents
Diluted EPS 9.7 cents 27.2 cents
(b) The following reflects the income and share data used in the earnings per share computations:
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Net profit from continuing operations 16,562 40,234
Net (profit) loss attributable to non-controlling interest from continuing operations (899) 3,690
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of VRL (from continuing operations and in total) 15,663 43,924
2016 2015
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 160,558,023 159,518,165
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share’ 162,159,487 161,600,932

The issued options were reviewed and determined to represent 1,601,464 potential ordinary shares as at 30 June 2016 (2015: 2,082,767 potential ordinary shares).
There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of completion of these financial
statements.

Under Accounting Standard AASB 2: Share-based Payment, shares issued under the Company's various share plans are required to be accounted for as options.
Shares issued under these plans are referred to as 'in-substance options' and are included in ordinary shares for the purposes of the EPS calculation.

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
4 INCOME TAX
(a) Major components of income tax expense from continuing operations for
the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2015 are:
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Current income tax
Current income tax expense (23,118) (21,767)
Deferred income tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 5,060 (2,809)
Deferred tax asset acquired in business combination - refer Note 32 5,183 -
Movements taken up in equity instead of income tax expense (2,053) 5,824
Income tax expense reported in statement of comprehensive
income - continuing operations (14,928) (18,752)
(b) Areconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit
before income tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax
expense at the Group's effective income tax rate is as follows:
Net profit before income tax 31,490 58,986
At the statutory income tax rate of 30% (2015: 30%) (9,447) (17,696)
Non-assessable income - 1,289
Non-deductible expenses (1,189) (915)
Net losses of overseas subsidiaries not brought to account - (3,860)
After-tax equity-accounted (losses) profits included in pre-tax profit (2,751) 2,836
Deferred tax balances de-recognised (refer material items of income and expense in Reconciliation
of Results contained in Directors' Report) (1,148) -
Other (393) (406)
Total income tax expense - continuing operations - at effective tax rate of 47.4% (2015: 31.8%) (14,928) (18,752)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
4  INCOME TAX (continued)
(c) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax at 30 June relates to the following:
CONSOLIDATED
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant & equipment 32,202 31,138 (1,064) 402
Film distribution royalties 34,731 35,766 1,035 3,503
Intangible assets 3,552 3,297 (255) 250
Unrealised foreign currency gains 5,309 4,040 (1,269) (4,040)
Derivatives 378 1,958 1,580 (1,882)
Other 2,078 2,439 361 (1,354)
Net-down with deferred tax assets (37,514) (31,849) - -
Total deferred income tax liabilities 40,736 46,789
Deferred tax assets
Post-employment benefits 9,375 8,936 439 1,274
Property, plant & equipment 13,302 12,588 714 (462)
Sundry creditors & accruals 1,810 1,686 124 (1,243)
Expenses deductible over more than one year - 772 (772) (141)
Provisions and unrealised foreign currency losses 3,574 2,242 1,332 (1,071)
Unearned income 4,438 1,211 3,227 29
Balance remaining from business combination in 2016 2,404 - 2,404 -
Capitalised development costs 1,449 1,610 61) (62)
Derivatives 1,982 1,593 389 1,006
Other 1,688 2,408 (720) 982
Net-down with deferred tax liabilities (37,514) (31,849) - -
Total deferred income tax assets 2,508 1,097
Deferred income tax benefit (expense) 7,464 (2,809)
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(d) The following deferred tax assets arising from tax losses
have not been brought to account as realisation of those benefits
is not probable:
Benefits for capital losses 6,418 2,483
Village Roadshow Limited - Tax Consolidation
Effective from 1 July 2003, VRL and its relevant wholly-owned entities have formed a Tax Consolidated group. Members of the Tax Consolidated group have executed a
combined Tax Sharing and Tax Funding Agreement ("TSA") in order to allocate income tax expense to the wholly-owned entities predominantly on a stand-alone basis.
In addition, the TSA provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its income tax payment obligations to the
Australian Taxation Office. At balance date, the possibility of default is remote. The head entity of the Tax Consolidated group is VRL. VRL has formally notified the
Australian Taxation Office of its adoption of the tax consolidation regime.
Village Roadshow Limited - Tax Consolidation contribution amounts
In the year ended 30 June 2016, VRL recognised an increase in current tax liabilities of $29.4 million (2015: $31.3 million), and an increase in inter-company receivables
of $29.4 million (2015: $31.3 million) in relation to tax consolidation contribution amounts.
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
5 DIVIDENDS DECLARED'
(a) Declared during the year
Final dividend on ordinary shares of 14.0 cents per share fully-franked
(2015: 14.0 cents per share fully-franked) 22,433 22,331
Interim dividend on ordinary shares of 14.0 cents per share fully-franked
(2015: 14.0 cents per share fully-franked) 22,553 22,334
44,986 44,665
(b) Declared subsequent to year-end’
Final dividend on ordinary shares of 14.0 cents per share fully-franked
(2015: 14.0 cents per share fully-franked) 22,555 22,433
22,555 22,433

' The tax rate at which paid dividends have been franked is 30% (2015: 30%).

June 2015 Financial Statements, respectively.

2 The final dividends for the years ended 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, which were declared subsequent to year-end, were not accrued in the 30 June 2016 or 30
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Reconciliation of cash
Cash on hand and at bank 40,839 32,712
Deposits at call 23,499 62,623
Total cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 64,338 95,335
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following at 30 June:
Total cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 64,338 95,335
Total cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the
statement of cash flows 64,338 95,335
(b) Reconciliation of net profit to net operating cash flows
Net profit 16,562 40,234
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 44,136 45,551
Amortisation 27,472 22,662
Impairment and other non-cash adjustments (refer Note 2(d)) 7,132 9,128
Provisions 1,862 1,354
Shared-based payment expense 891 1,532
Net gains on disposal of assets (540) (5,214)
Unrealised foreign currency (gains) losses (354) 671
Difference between equity-accounted results and cash dividends/interest received 17,499 (2,974)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase - trade and other receivables (11,302) (39,192)
(Decrease) increase - trade and other payables (37,446) 64,712
Increase - net current tax assets (2,220) (8,219)
Increase - unearned income 13,288 9,589
Increase (decrease) - other payables and provisions 2,373 (4,634)
Increase - inventories (2,554) (4,908)
Decrease - capitalised borrowing costs 1,966 1,347
Decrease - deferred and other income tax liabilities (5,209) (1,876)
Decrease (increase) - prepayments and other assets 13,385 (9,425)
Increase - film distribution royalties (4,635) (9,055)
Net operating cash flows 82,306 111,283
(c¢) Financing facilities available
At reporting date, the following financing facilities were available:
Total facilities 813,834 670,688
Facilities used at reporting date 603,834 502,188
Facilities unused at reporting date 210,000 168,500
Refer also to Note 30 for an analysis of the Group's liquidity profile.
As at the date of this report, there were undrawn financing facilities of $195.0 million.
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current:
Trade and other receivables 164,064 149,400
Provision for impairment loss (a) (5,188) (5,430)
158,876 143,970
Non-current:
Trade and other receivables 15,254 15,894
Due from associates 24,188 10,805
Provision for impairment loss (b) (24,188) (10,805)

15,254 15,894
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade and other receivables and provision for impairment loss
At 30 June, the ageing analysis of trade and other receivables is as follows:
0 to 3 months 171,449 156,599
> 3 months' 2,681 3,265
0 to 3 months - CI* 339 211
3 to 6 months - CI* 26 -
> 6 months - CI* 4,823 5,219
Total trade and other receivables before provisions 179,318 165,294
* Considered Impaired ("CI")
1 Includes receivables past due but not considered impaired of $2,043,000 in 2016 in greater than 3 months (2015: $265,000).
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-90 day terms. A-provision for impairment loss is recognised when there is
objective evidence that an individual trade receivable is impaired (refer Note 30(c)(i)).
Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:
Carrying amount at beginning 5,430 5,289
Charge for the year 534 257
Foreign exchange translation 14 5
Amounts written off for the year (790) (121)
Carrying amount at end 5,188 5,430
(b) Due from associates and provision for impairment loss
At 30 June, the ageing analysis of amounts owing by associates is as follows:
0 to 3 months - CI* 24,188 10,805
Total due from associates before provisions 24,188 10,805
* Considered Impaired ("CI")
Receivables past due but not considered impaired are Nil (2015: Nil).
Movements in the provision for impairment loss were as follows:
Carrying amount at beginning 10,805 10,805
Increase for the year 24,188 -
Decrease for the year (10,805) -
Carrying amount at end 24,188 10,805
8 INVENTORIES
Current:
Merchandise held for resale - at cost 27,927 25,744
Provision for stock loss (2,998) (3,031)
24,929 22,713
Note: Cost of goods sold expense is represented by amounts paid for inventories - refer Note 2(d).
9  GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
Film
Distribution Brand Software &
Rights Goodwill Names' Other Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 July 2015
Cost 34,213 265,497 31,680 89,892 421,282
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (34,144) (7,804) (600) (40,550) (83,098)
Net carrying amount 69 257,693 31,080 49,342 338,184
Year ended 30 June 2016
At 1 July 2015, net of accumulated amortisation
and impairment 69 257,693 31,080 49,342 338,184
Additions / transfers (69) - - 14,560 14,491
Net foreign currency movements arising from
investments in foreign operations - (7,324) - (148) (7,472)
Acquisitions - refer Note 32 - 58,487 - 1,047 59,534
Impairment - - - (256) (256)
Amortisation - refer Note 2(d) - - - (15,457) (15,457)
Net carrying amount - 308,856 31,080 49,088 389,024
At 30 June 2016
Cost - 316,660 31,680 104,213 452,553
Accumulated amortisation and impairment - (7,804) (600) (55,125) (63,529)

Net carrying amount - 308,856 31,080 49,088 389,024

41
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9  GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
Film
Distribution Brand Software &
Rights Goodwill Names' Other Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 July 2014
Cost 34,213 256,099 31,680 74,555 396,547
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (34,132) (7,804) (600) (34,777) (77,313)
Net carrying amount 81 248,295 31,080 39,778 319,234
Year ended 30 June 2015
At 1 July 2014, net of accumulated amortisation
and impairment 81 248,295 31,080 39,778 319,234
Additions / transfers - - - 19,970 19,970
Net foreign currency movements arising from
investments in foreign operations - - - 79 79
Acquisitions - 9,398 - 170 9,568
Amortisation - refer Note 2(d) (12) - - (10,655) (10,667)
Net carrying amount 69 257,693 31,080 49,342 338,184
At 30 June 2015
Cost 34,213 265,497 31,680 89,892 421,282
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (34,144) (7,804) (600) (40,550) (83,098)
Net carrying amount 69 257,693 31,080 49,342 338,184
Note:
1 In 2016 and 2015, all of the brand names relate to the Village Roadshow Theme Parks group.
(a) Impairment testing of goodwill and brand names

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are tested at least annually for impairment based upon the recoverable amount of the appropriate cash generating units
("CGU's") to which the goodwill and indefinite life intangibles have been allocated. Details of the Group's main goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are provided
below.

Goodwill assessed on the basis of fair value less costs of disposal:

The recoverable amount of the material balances of the Group's goodwill has been determined based on fair value less costs of disposal ("FVLCD") calculations. The
key assumptions on which the Group has based cash flow projections when determining FVLCD were that projected future performance was based on past
performance and expectations for the future, and that no significant events were identified which would cause the Group to conclude that past performance was not an
appropriate indicator of future performance. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was in the range of 10.6% to 12.9% (2015: 10.4% to 13.3%).
Cash flows used were mainly from the Group's 5 year plans. Cash flows beyond five years were extrapolated using a terminal growth rate range of up to 3% (2015:
range of up to 3%). The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the businesses in which the CGU's operate. Goodwill allocated to cash
generating units and for impairment testing included material groupings and 2016 balances as follows:

- Village Roadshow Theme Parks group - $137.1 million (2015: $137.1 million) (re: Australian Theme Park interests)

- Roadshow Distributors Pty. Ltd. group - $57.1 million (2015: $57.1 million) (re: Film Distribution interests)

- Village Cinemas Australia Pty. Ltd. group - $47.2 million (2015: $41.2 million) (re: Australian Cinemas Exhibition interests)
- Village Roadshow Digital Pty. Ltd. group - $22.3 million (2015: $22.3 million) (re: Australian Marketing Solutions interest)
- Edge UK Holdings Ltd. group - $45.2 million (2015: Nil) (re: UK Marketing Solutions interest)

Impairment losses recognised:

Impairment losses for Software and Other of $0.3 million were recognised in the year ended 30 June 2016 relating to the Other segment. There were no other
impairment losses recognised for Goodwill and Other Intangibles in the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil).

Brand names:

Brand names owned by the Village Roadshow Theme Parks group are classified as indefinite life intangible assets and are therefore subject to annual impairment
testing. For the purposes of impairment testing the relevant brand names form part of the Australian Theme Parks CGU (2016: $31.1 million, 2015: $31.1 million). Refer
above for further details relating to cash flows, growth and discount rates.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions:
With regard to the assessment of the recoverable amount of intangible assets, the Company believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying values to exceed recoverable amounts.
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
10 OTHER ASSETS AND FILM DISTRIBUTION ROYALTIES
(a) Other Assets
Current:
Prepayments 6,990 7,531
Work in progress 2,107 21,266
Other assets 3,034 2,526
12,131 31,323
Non-current:
Security deposits 205 97
Other assets 266 742
471 839
(b) Film Distribution Royalties
Opening balance 139,950 130,895
Additions 89,697 67,327
Foreign currency movements (859) 6,233
Film hire and other film expenses (84,203) (64,505)
144,585 139,950
Current film distribution royalties 75,546 67,312
Non-current film distribution royalties 69,039 72,638
144,585 139,950
11 INVESTMENTS - EQUITY-ACCOUNTED
Non-current:
Investments - equity-accounted 48,305 42,331

(a) Detailed information: Dartina Development Limited ("Dartina"):

(i)  Nature of Relationship and Ownership Percentage:
The VRL group owns 50% of the ordinary shares in Dartina, which is the entity that owns the Singapore Cinema Exhibition operations. Dartina is classified as a joint
venture for accounting purposes.

(i)  Principal Place of Business and Country of Incorporation:
Dartina was incorporated in Hong Kong, and the principal place of business for Dartina and its subsidiaries is 68 Orchard Road, B1-10 Plaza Singapura, Singapore.

(iii)  Dividends Received:
In the year ended 30 June 2016, the VRL group received $7.5 million (2015: $6.5 million) in dividends from Dartina.

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(iv) Summarised Financial Information (at 100%):

Current assets 43,272 40,810
Non-current assets 64,940 64,651
Current liabilities 53,217 51,381
Non-current liabilities 11,797 20,829
Equity 43,198 33,251
Carrying value of investment 21,002 16,028
Total income 154,196 139,092
Operating profit after tax - continuing operations 23,357 16,377
Total operating profit after tax 23,357 16,377
Other Comprehensive Income 1,389 3,431
Total Comprehensive Income 24,746 19,808
Equity-accounted share of Dartina's profit after tax 11,678 8,188
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11 INVESTMENTS - EQUITY-ACCOUNTED (continued)
(b) Detailed information: Village Roadshow Entertainment Group Limited ("VREG"):
(i)  Nature of Relationship and Ownership Percentage:
The VRL group is the largest shareholder in VREG, with 50.17% (2015: 47.12%) of the ordinary shares of VREG. VREG is classified as an associate for accounting
purposes.
The VREG Board is the ultimate decision-making body of VREG, however the provisions of the VREG Shareholders Agreement provide that most decisions regarding
relevant activities of VREG are recommended to the Board by an advisory committee established under the Shareholders Agreement ("Advisory Committee"). The VRL
group does not have control of either the VREG Board or Advisory Committee. Based on this, it has been determined that the VRL group does not control VREG in
accordance with AASB 10: Consolidated Financial Statements, however the VRL group does have significant influence over VREG in accordance with AASB 128:
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures .
Therefore, the investment in VREG is equity-accounted, and as a result of the significant negative net asset position of VREG, the carrying value of the net investment
has been written down to nil due to the recognition of accumulated losses, so that the VRL group has no carrying value for accounting purposes. It is noted that VREG's
film rights are recorded in its accounts (in non-current assets) at amortised cost, as required under IFRS, which is significantly less than the market value of these film
rights.
As advised to the Australian Securities Exchange on 15 September 2015, VREG has completed new corporate debt facilities totalling USD 325 million, refinancing its
existing corporate debt facility and providing additional working capital. Part of the USD 325 million VREG corporate debt refinancing is subordinated debt financing of
USD 25 million, repayable by September 2021. The VRL group contributed USD 15 million of the subordinated debt, which is earning cash interest of 6% p.a., as well
as non-cash interest of 9.5% p.a. payable upon repayment of the debt, plus an entitlement to further non-voting shares.
As a result of VREG's significant negative net asset position, this additional net investment by the VRL group has been immediately written off due to equity accounting
requirements, resulting in an equity-accounted loss after tax of A$20.0 million in the year ended 30 June 2016 (included in material items of income and expense in the
Reconciliation of Results contained in the Directors’ Report).
As part of the VREG refinancing, the VRL group’s existing non-voting redeemable equity shares in VREG have been modified, now accruing a 14% non-cash dividend,
with redemption by March 2022. The non-voting redeemable equity is subordinated to VREG's securitised film financing, corporate debt and subordinated debt. All
VREG debt is non-recourse to the VRL group.
The VRL group results only include interest or dividends received in cash from VREG, and in the year ended to 30 June 2016, cash interest of A$0.8 million was
received from VREG and included in equity-accounted results (2015: Nil), and no cash dividends were received in either the current or previous corresponding periods.
(ii)  Principal Place of Business and Country of Incorporation:
VREG was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and its principal place of business is Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands.
(iii)  Dividends Received:
In the year ended 30 June 2016, the VRL group did not receive any dividends from VREG (2015: Nil).
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(iv) Summarised Financial Information (at 100%):
Current assets 106,794 102,158
Non-current assets 311,705 403,207
Current liabilities 179,290 687,134
Non-current liabilities 1,391,761 727,639
Equity (1,152,552) (909,408)
Carrying value of investment - -
Total income 277,054 473,004
Operating loss after tax (excluding gain on sale in 2015) (216,091) (209,655)
Gain on sale - 278,223
Operating (loss) profit after tax - continuing operations (216,091) 68,568
Operating profit after tax - discontinued operations - -
Total operating (loss) profit after tax (216,091) 68,568
Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) 1,397 (51)
Total Comprehensive (Expense) Income (214,694) 68,517
Equity-accounted share of VREG's loss after tax (19,204) -
Cumulative unrecognised share of VREG's losses after
income tax due to discontinuation of equity method (487,114) (371,994)

The summarised financial information shown above is based on the unaudited management accounts of VREG, as the audited accounts are not yet available.

As at 30 June 2016, the VRL group’s non-voting redeemable equity shares, along with VREG's mezzanine debt, and balances due on the film finance facility are
included in VREG'’s non-current liabilities (2015: non-voting redeemable equity shares and mezzanine debt were included in current liabilities and balances due on the
film finance facility were included in non-current liabilities). All VREG debt is non-recourse to the VRL group.

The gain on sale in 2015 shown above represents a gain on sale during the year ended 30 June 2015 of a further one-third interest in future cash flows relating to 74
films, with proceeds used to reduce VREG's debt.
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11 INVESTMENTS - EQUITY-ACCOUNTED (continued)
(c) Detailed information: FilmNation Entertainment LLC ("FilmNation"):
(i)  Nature of Relationship and Ownership Percentage:

As advised to the Australian Securities Exchange on 17 December 2014, the VRL group’s Film Distribution division acquired a 31.03% interest in FilmNation effective
from 1 January 2015, which resulted in a total of USD 18.0 million of equity being contributed to FilmNation in tranches largely during calendar 2015. FilmNation is
classified as an associate for accounting purposes.

(i) Principal Place of Business and Country of Incorporation:

FilmNation was incorporated in the United States of America, and the principal place of business for FilmNation and its subsidiaries is 150 West 22nd Street, 9th Floor,
New York, USA.

(iii)  Dividends Received:
In the year ended 30 June 2016, the VRL group did not receive any dividends from FilmNation (2015: Nil).

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(iv) Summarised Financial Information (at 100%):

Current assets 106,800 90,651
Non-current assets 9,606 5,502
Current liabilities 9,921 68,161
Non-current liabilities 72,930 -
Equity 33,555 27,992
Carrying value of investment 27,297 25,994
Total income 17,251 8,689
Operating profit after tax - continuing operations 3,619 3,286
Operating profit after tax - discontinued operations - -
Total operating profit after tax 3,619 3,286
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income 3,619 3,286
Equity-accounted share of FilmNation's profit after tax 1,123 1,020

The summarised financial information shown above for 2016 is based on the unaudited management accounts of FilmNation, as the audited accounts for FilmNation are
prepared as at 31 December each year. The summarised financial information for 2015 is based on unaudited management accounts from the date of acquisition to the
period ended 30 June 2015.

(d) Detailed information: iPic-Gold Class Entertainment LLC ("IGCE"):
(i)  Nature of Relationship and Ownership Percentage:
The VRL group owns 30% of the ordinary shares in IGCE. IGCE is classified as an associate for accounting purposes.

(ii)  Principal Place of Business and Country of Incorporation:
IGCE was incorporated in the United States of America, and the principal place of business for IGCE is 433 Plaza Real, Suite 335, Boca Raton, Florida, USA.

(iii)  Dividends Received:
In the year ended 30 June 2016, the VRL group did not receive any dividends from IGCE (2015: Nil).

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(iv) Summarised Financial Information (at 100%):
Current assets 20,928 14,620
Non-current assets 183,224 123,229
Current liabilities 109,137 67,982
Non-current liabilities 193,874 129,188
Equity (98,859) (59,321)
Carrying value of investment - -
Total income 149,093 108,423
Operating loss after tax - continuing operations (38,331) (25,551)
Operating profit after tax - discontinued operations - -
Total operating loss after tax (38,331) (25,551)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Expense (38,331) (25,551)
Equity-accounted share of IGCE's loss after tax (2,451) -
Cumulative unrecognised share of IGCE's losses after
income tax due to discontinuation of equity method (23,056) (14,008)

The summarised financial information shown above is based on the unaudited management accounts of IGCE, as the audited accounts for IGCE are prepared as at 31
December each year.

The VRL group contributed USD 1.8 million to IGCE in the year ended 30 June 2016. As a result of IGCE's negative net asset position, these additional net investment
amounts have been immediately written off due to equity accounting requirements, resulting in an equity-accounted loss after tax of A$2.5 million (included in material
items of income and expense in the attached Reconciliation of Results contained in the Directors Report).

VRL has provided a financial guarantee of USD 24.2 million to support the financing of IGCE and its associates (refer Note 22(a)(vi) regarding contingent liabilities).
There is no other recourse to the VRL group.
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11 INVESTMENTS - EQUITY-ACCOUNTED (continued)
(e) Aggregated information - other equity-accounted investments:
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(i)  Aggregated financial information - other equity-accounted investments:
Carrying value of investment 6 309
Share of operating (loss) profit after tax (316) 246
Share of other Comprehensive Income - -
Share of Total Comprehensive (Expense) Income (316) 246

(f) Contingent liabilities of equity-accounted investments:
Share of contingent liabilities incurred jointly with other investors - refer Note 22 for disclosures.

12 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS

Names and principal activities of joint operations, and the percentage interest held by entities in the Group in those joint operations:

% INTEREST HELD % INTEREST HELD
NAME PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 2016 2015
Australian Theatres Multiplex cinema operator 50.00% 50.00%
Browns Plains Multiplex Cinemas Multiplex cinema operator 50.00% 33.33%
Carlton Nova / Palace Cinema operator 25.00% 25.00%
Castle Towers Multiplex Cinemas Multiplex cinema operator 50.00% 33.33%
Loganholme Cinemas Cinema operator 50.00% 50.00%
Morwell Multiplex Cinemas Cinema operator 75.00% 75.00%
Mt. Gravatt Multiplex Cinemas Cinema operator 33.33% 33.33%
Village / GUO / BCC Cinemas Cinema operator 50.00% 50.00%
Village / Sali Cinemas Bendigo Cinema operator 50.00% 50.00%
Village Warrnambool Cinemas Cinema operator 50.00% 50.00%
Werribee Cinemas Cinema operator 50.00% 50.00%
There were no impairment losses in the joint operations.
13  SUBSIDIARIES
COUNTRY OF % OWNED % OWNED
NAME INCORPORATION! 2016 2015
Countrywide Property Investments (UK) Limited® United Kingdom 80.00% -
DEG Holdings Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Edge Loyalty Systems Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Edge Loyalty UK Limited® United Kingdom 80.00% -
Edge UK Holdings Limited® United Kingdom 100.00% -
Entertainment of The Future Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Film Services (Australia) Pty. Limited® Australia - 100.00%
Harvest Family Entertainment Arizona LLC United States 100.00% 100.00%
In10metro Pty. Limited® Australia - 100.00%
Movie World Holdings Joint Venture Australia 100.00% 100.00%
MyFun Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Opia International (UK) Limited® United Kingdom 80.00% -
Opia Limited® United Kingdom 80.00% -
Opia LP® United States 80.00% -
Opia Russia Limited® Russia 80.00% -
Opia US Inc. United States 80.00% -
Reel DVD Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Roadshow Distributors Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Roadshow Entertainment (NZ) Limited New Zealand 100.00% 100.00%
Roadshow Films Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Roadshow Pay Movies Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Roadshow Productions Pty. Limited
(previously called Roadshow Live Pty. Limited) Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Roadshow Television Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Roadshow Unit Trust Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Sea World Helicopters Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Sea World Management Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
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13  SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
COUNTRY OF % OWNED % OWNED

NAME INCORPORATION' 2016 2015
Sea World Property Trust Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Silver Handles Pty. Limited® Australia - 100.00%
Sincled Investments Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Summit Digital Limited® United Kingdom 80.00% -
The Waterpark LLC United States 50.09% 50.09%
The Waterpark Management LLC United States 50.00% 50.00%
Village Cinemas Australia Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
VILLEICO Pty. Limited (previously

called Village Leisure Company Pty. Limited)? Australia - 100.00%
Village Online Investments Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow (Fiji) Limited Fiji 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow (Hungary) Distribution KFT? Hungary - 100.00%
Village Roadshow Attractions USA Inc. United States 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Australian Films Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Digital Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow East Coast Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Exhibition Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Group Services Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Hainan Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Holdings Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Holdings Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Hungary ZRT? Hungary - 100.00%
Village Roadshow Intencity Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Investments Holdings USA Inc. United States 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow IP Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Leisure Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Pictures International Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Pictures Television Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
VRPWW Pty. Limited (previously

called Village Roadshow Pictures Worldwide Pty. Limited)? Australia - 100.00%
Village Roadshow Share Plan Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow SPV1 Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Theatres Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Theme Parks Holdings USA Inc. United States 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Theme Parks Operations (Hainan) Limited

(previously called Village Roadshow Theme Parks Operations

(Hainan International Tourism Island Pilot Zone) Co. Limited) China 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Theme Parks Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Theme Parks USA Inc. United States 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow Treasury Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow UK Holdings Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Roadshow USA Holdings Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Village Theatres 3 Limited United Kingdom 100.00% 100.00%
Village Theatres Morwell Pty. Limited Australia 75.00% 75.00%
VR Corporate Services Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
VR ESP Finance Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
VR Leisure Holdings Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
VRPPL Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
VRS Holdings Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
VRTP Entertainment Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
VRTP Services Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
WB Properties Australia Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
Wet'n'Wild Sydney Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%
WSW Aviation Pty. Limited? Australia - 100.00%
WSW Units Pty. Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%

! Foreign subsidiaries carry out their business activities in the country of incorporation.
2 Entity placed into liquidation or deregistration lodged during the current or prior year.

3 Entity purchased or incorporated during the year.
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
14 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Land:
At cost 34,534 34,418
Buildings & improvements:
At cost 112,410 93,962
Less depreciation and impairment (33,014) (29,969)
79,396 63,993
Capital work in progress:
At cost less impairment 25,318 24,912
Leasehold improvements:
At cost 325,701 303,010
Less amortisation and impairment (123,391) (109,112)
202,310 193,898
Plant, equipment & vehicles (owned):
At cost 712,879 672,011
Less depreciation and impairment (367,618) (332,147)
345,261 339,864
686,819 657,085
(a) Reconciliations
Land:
Carrying amount at beginning : 34,418 33,795
Net foreign currency movements arising from investments in foreign operations 116 623
Carrying amount at end 34,534 34,418
Buildings & improvements:
Carrying amount at beginning 63,993 60,360
Additions / transfers 18,040 4,162
Net foreign currency movements arising from investments in foreign operations 467 2,433
Disposals (4) -
Depreciation expense (3,100) (2,962)
Carrying amount at end 79,396 63,993
Capital work in progress:
Carrying amount at beginning 24,912 10,738
Additions 14,320 21,849
Net foreign currency movements arising from investments in foreign operations 34 -
Impairment' (312) -
Transfers (13,636) (7,675)
Carrying amount at end 25,318 24,912
Leasehold improvements:
Carrying amount at beginning 193,898 188,127
Additions / transfers 20,190 17,656
Acquisitions 260 -
Net foreign currency movements arising from investments in foreign operations 1 (1)
Disposals (24) 9)
Amortisation expense (12,015) (11,875)
Carrying amount at end 202,310 193,898
Plant, equipment & vehicles (owned):
Carrying amount at beginning 339,864 363,873
Additions / transfers 45,602 24,016
Acquisitions 603 -
Impairment' (145) (9,128)
Net foreign currency movements arising from investments in foreign operations 636 4,290
Disposals (263) (598)
Depreciation expense (41,036) (42,589)
Carrying amount at end 345,261 339,864

Impairment losses for property, plant & equipment of $0.5 million were recognised in the year ended 30 June 2016 relating to the Cinema Exhibition segment. In the
year ended 30 June 2015, impairment losses of $9.1 million were recognised for continuing operations, of which $8.3 million related to the Theme Parks segment, and
$0.8 million related to the Cinema Exhibition segment. For the relevant 2015 Theme Parks assessment, the pre-tax discount range used was 9.9% to 11.5%, and the
recoverable amounts were based on fair value less costs of disposal. Cash flows beyond five years were extrapolated using a terminal growth rate of 2.5%, and the
latest updated forecasts were used in the impairment review, which were lower than the forecasts included in the latest five year plan due to the relevant underlying
financial performance being lower than expected. Under the fair value hierarchy, level 3 inputs were used, and the impairment losses have been disclosed in Note 2(d)
for 2015.
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Current:
Trade and sundry payables 258,697 294,175
Non-current:
Trade and sundry payables 46,648 30,918
Owing to other 388 704
47,036 31,622
For terms and conditions refer to Note 30(c)(ii).
16 INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Current:
Secured borrowings 1,115 29,519
Non-current:
Secured borrowings 597,942 467,972

Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments:
In December 2015, the VRL group restructured its main Divisional and Corporate finance facilities into a new consolidated VRL group finance facility, which resulted in
an increased facility limit of $800 million, up from $650 million at the time of the restructure, which has been drawn to $590 million as at 30 June 2016.

The new VRL group finance facility is fully revolving, with no scheduled or conditional amortisation payments, and comprises two tranches of $480 million and $320
million which expire in December 2019 and December 2020, respectively.

The new finance facility is subject to interest at variable interest rates (however the VRL group has interest rate hedging in place over a proportion of the debt), and is
secured by equitable share mortgages over certain subsidiary and associate holding companies, and by guarantees from VRL and various wholly-owned subsidiaries.

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
17  PROVISIONS
Current:
Employee benefits 31,531 28,668
Make good provision - 19
Other 9,159 8,189
40,690 36,876
Non-current:
Employee benefits 972 2,634
Make good provision 4,376 3,711
Other 3,376 2,227
8,724 8,572
Employee benefit liabilities:
Provision for employee benefits -
Current 31,531 28,668
Non-current 972 2,634
Aggregate employee benefit liabilities 32,503 31,302
(a) Reconciliations
Make good provision:
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year 3,730 7,654
Amounts added during the year 756 -
Amounts utilised or written back during the year (182) (4,142)
Discount adjustment 72 218
Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 4,376 3,730
Other provisions:
Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year 10,416 12,488
Increase in provision 2,445 -
Amounts acquired during the year 57 -
Amounts utilised or written back during the year (383) (2,178)
Discount adjustment - 106
Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 12,535 10,416

Make good provision

In accordance with certain lease agreements, the Group must restore leased premises to the original condition on expiration of the relevant lease. Provisions are raised
in respect of such 'make good' clauses to cover the Group's obligation to remove leasehold improvements from leased premises where this is likely to be required in the
foreseeable future. Make good provisions are also recognised in relation to the likely closure of rides/attractions in the Theme Parks division. Because of the long-term
nature of the liability, the greatest uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will ultimately be incurred. In the year ended 30 June 2015, following a re-
assessment of likely make good requirements in the Theme Parks division, surplus provision amounts were reversed.

Other provisions
Other provisions mainly comprises an onerous lease provision (with the balance relating to various other matters). Due to the nature of the liability, the greatest
uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will ultimately be incurred.
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
18 OTHER LIABILITIES
Current:
Unearned revenue 60,360 48,152
Non-current:
Unearned revenue 13,222 1,319
19 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Issued and fully paid up capital:
Ordinary shares 241,100 237,580
Employee share loans deducted from equity’ (16,866) (17,174)
224,234 220,406

Secured advances - executive loans (refer also to Note 25).
Under the terms of the Executive & Employee Option Plan Loan Facility, dividends are used to repay the interest accrued with any surplus dividend payment used to
repay the capital amount of the loan.

Under the terms of the Executive Share Plan & Loan Facility to 2011, 10 cents of every dividend per share is used to repay the interest accrued and 50% of any
remaining dividend per share is used to repay the capital amount of the loan. Under the terms of the Executive Share Plan & Loan Facility for allotments from 2012
onwards, 20 cents of every dividend per share is used to repay the interest accrued and 50% of any remaining dividend per share is used to repay the capital amount of
the loan.

Ordinary Shares:
During the 2016 and 2015 years, movements in fully paid ordinary shares on issue were as follows:
CONSIDERATION NO. OF SHARES

2016 2015 2016 2015

$'000 $'000 Thousands Thousands
Beginning of the financial year 237,580 232,830 160,229 159,504
Allotment - September 2014 at $7.45 - Directors' Share Plan - 39 - 5
Allotment - December 2014 at $6.96 - Directors' Share Plan - 39 - 6
Allotment - March 2015 at $5.40 - Directors' Share Plan - 40 - 7
Allotment - June 2015 at $6.17 - Directors' Share Plan - 40 - 7
Allotment - June 2015 at $6.56 - Executive Share Plan - 4,592 - 700
Allotment - September 2015 at $7.01 - Directors' Share Plan 40 - 6 -
Allotment - October 2015 at $7.37 - Executive Share Plan 737 - 100 -
Allotment - December 2015 at $6.81 - Directors' Share Plan 36 - 5 -
Share issue on exercise of options - March 2016 at $3.51 2,633 - 750 -
Allotment - March 2016 at $5.21 - Directors' Share Plan 37 - 7 -
Allotment - June 2016 at $5.27 - Directors' Share Plan 37 - 7 -
End of the financial year 241,100 237,580 161,104 160,229
Issued Options:

In accordance with a special resolution of the Company's shareholders on 15 November 2012, 4,500,000 options over ordinary shares were allotted to Mr. Graham W.
Burke, the Chief Executive Officer, with 1,500,000 options being exercisable at an exercise price of $3.76 per share not earlier than 1 March 2016; 1,500,000 options
being exercisable at an exercise price of $3.76 per share not earlier than 1 March 2017; and 1,500,000 options being exercisable at an exercise price of $3.76 per share
not earlier than 1 March 2018. Following the $0.25 reduction of share capital approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting in November 2013, the exercise
price of these options was reduced to $3.51 per share, effective from 31 December 2013. All the options are subject to performance hurdles as outlined in Note 25 and
are exercisable no later than 1 March 2019 or 12 months following cessation of Mr. Burke's employment with the Company, whichever is the earlier. In September
2015, 750,000 first tranche options lapsed as a result of the 4% EPS Compound Annual Growth Rate hurdle not being achieved. In March 2016, 750,000 of the
remaining first tranche options were exercised at a price of $3.51 per share. The names of all persons who currently hold options are entered in the register kept by the
Company, which may be inspected free of charge.

As at 30 June 2016, the details of outstanding options over ordinary shares were as follows:

Number of options Expiry date Exercise price per option|
1,500,000 1 March 2019 $3.51
1,500,000 1 March 2019 $3.51

The Company has also issued various "in substance options" - refer Note 25.

Terms and conditions of contributed equity

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the Company, holders of such shares have the right to participate in the
distribution of any surplus assets of the Company.

Ordinary shares entitle their holder to the following voting rights:

- On a show of hands - one vote for every member present in person or by proxy.

- On a poll - one vote for every share held.
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19 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (continued)
Capital management
When managing capital, management's objective is to ensure that the Group continues as a going concern, as well as to maintain optimal returns to shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders. Management also aims to maintain a capital structure that ensures the lowest cost of capital available to the Group.
As the market is constantly changing and the Group reviews new opportunities, management may change the amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt, as methods of being able to meet its capital objectives.
Management undertake continual reviews of the Group's capital and use gearing ratios as a tool to undertake this (net debt/total capital). The gearing ratios at 30 June
2016 and 2015 were as follows:
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Total borrowings 599,057 497,491
Less cash and cash equivalents (64,338) (95,335)
Net debt 534,719 402,156
Total equity 480,359 525,643
Total capital 1,015,078 927,799
Gearing ratio 53% 43%
Other than as required as usual under various financing agreements, the Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
20 RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
Foreign currency translation reserve:
The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and on equity-accounted
investments.
Balance at beginning of year (2,509) (4,284)
Amount relating to translation of accounts & net investments before tax effect (1,375) 5,848
Other changes in equity - 876
Tax effect of relevant movements for year 84 (4,949)
Balance at end of year (3,800) (2,509)
Cash flow hedge reserve:
This reserve records the portion of the gain or loss on hedging instruments that are classified as
cash flow hedges, and which are determined to be effective hedges.
Balance at beginning of year 851 (1,191)
Movement on effective hedging instruments during the year before tax effect (6,563) 2,917
Tax effect of movement on effective hedging instruments during the year 1,969 (875)
Balance at end of year (3,743) 851
Asset revaluation reserve:
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record uplifts on assets owned following business
combinations.
Balance at beginning of year 91,474 91,474
Balance at end of year 91,474 91,474
Employee equity benefits reserve:
This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to Directors and executives
as part of their remuneration (refer Note 25).
Balance at beginning of year 11,939 10,407
Share-based payment movements 891 1,532
Balance at end of year 12,830 11,939
Controlled entity acquisition reserve:
This reserve represents the incremental amount for the put and call options over the remaining
20% non-controlling interest in Opia (refer Note 32).
Balance at beginning of year - -
Acquisition of Opia (15,794) -
Net foreign currency movement 8 -
Change in fair value 220 -
Balance at end of year (15,566) -
General reserve:
The general reserve is used for amounts that do not relate to other specified reserves.
Balance at beginning of year 344 344
Balance at end of year 344 344
Total reserves 81,539 102,099
Retained earnings:
Balance at the beginning of year 188,887 190,504
Net profit attributable to members of VRL 15,663 43,924
Total available for appropriation 204,550 234,428
Other changes in equity - (876)
Dividends and distributions provided or paid (44,986) (44,665)
Balance at end of year 159,564 188,887
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2016 2015
$'000 $'000
21 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries:
Contributed equity / other 17,880 17,289
Retained earnings (2,858) (3,038)
15,022 14,251
22 CONTINGENCIES
(a) Contingent liabilities
Best estimate of amounts relating to:
(i)  Bank guarantees for commitments of subsidiaries - 106
(ii)  Joint and several obligations for operating lease commitments of partners in joint opera\tions1 10,033 38,358
(i) Corporate guarantees for commitments of subsidiaries 132 132
10,165 38,596
' Refer Note 22(b)(i) for corresponding amount reflecting the related contingent assets.
(iv)  Other contingent liabilities - Income Tax:
As disclosed in Note 22(a)(iv) in the 30 June 2015 financial report, the VRL group anticipates that tax audits may occur from time to time in Australia, and the VRL group
is subject to routine tax audits in certain overseas jurisdictions.
Also as disclosed in the 30 June 2015 financial report, and as updated in the 31 December 2015 half-year financial report, the Australian Taxation Office (‘ATO") carried
out a Client Risk Review in relation to the VRL Tax Consolidated Group, covering the financial years from 2012 to 2014. In mid February 2016, the ATO advised that the
Client Risk Review would be closed, but they also advised that it was likely that a Tax Audit would be conducted by the ATO in future, limited to particular matters.
In July 2016, the ATO advised that, following the Client Risk Review, a Tax Audit was to be carried out in relation to the VRL Tax Consolidated group, covering the
financial years from 2012 to 2015. Initial information requested is in the process of being provided to the ATO, and will continue to be provided during these early stages
of the Tax Audit. The ATO has advised they expect to be able to complete this Tax Audit by around August 2017, based on similar Tax Audits and subject to any
particular issues that may arise.
VRL does not currently believe that any material impact will result from the Tax Audit.
(v) Belfast Rent Dispute:
As disclosed in Note 22(a)(v) in the 30 June 2015 financial report, Village Theatres 3 Limited (“VT3"), a wholly-owned subsidiary in the VRL group, is continuing to take
action against its landlord seeking damages. The landlord is also seeking payment of unpaid rent, which has been fully accrued in VT3's accounts as at 30 June 2016.
(vi) Guarantee issued in relation to Associate:
As disclosed in Note 22(a)(vi) in the 30 June 2015 financial report, VRL has procured a bank guarantee to support the financing of an associated entity, VR iPic Finance
LLC ("VRIF"), in which the VRL group has a 42.86% (3/7th) interest. VRIF has obtained debt financing to contribute funds to iPic-Gold Class Entertainment LLC
(“IGCE"), which is also an associated entity of VRL. Another shareholder of IGCE is also providing guarantee support to VRIF.
As disclosed in the 31 December 2015 half-year financial report, VRL's guarantee exposure in relation to VRIF has increased to the maximum amount of USD 24.2
million.
(b) Contingent assets
In the event that any entity in the Group is required to meet a joint venture or partnership liability in excess of its proportionate share, that entity has right of recourse
against the co-joint venturers or other partners in respect of that excess. Specifically, the Group has a contingent asset for the amount of the following joint and several
operating lease commitments in the event that it is called upon to meet liabilities of the other joint venturers:
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(i)  Right of recourse in relation to joint and several obligations for
operating lease commitments of partners in joint operations’ 10,033 38,358

" Refer Note 22(a)(ii) for corresponding amount reflecting the related contingent liabilities.
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23 COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating leases
The Group has entered into commercial leases for cinemas, offices and other operational location sites. The lease commitments schedule below includes cinema and
office leases with terms of up to 15 years, however it does not include terms of renewal. In general, cinema and office leases do not include purchase options although
on rare occasions there may be a purchase option. Renewals are at the option of the specific entity that holds that lease. In addition, the leases include the Crown
leases entered into by Sea World Property Trust, which have a remaining term of 41 years, and the Wet'n'Wild Sydney ground lease, which has a remaining term of 47
years.
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(i)  Operating leases - Minimum lease payments:
Payable within 1 year 47,370 43,279
Payable between 1 and 5 years 151,393 152,053
Payable after 5 years 244,659 234,782
443,422 430,114
(i)  Operating leases - Percentage based lease pelyments:1
Payable within 1 year 5,914 5,186
Payable between 1 and 5 years 20,667 17,348
Payable after 5 years 28,328 19,209
54,909 41,743
Total operating lease commitments 498,331 471,857
' Accounting standard AASB 117: Leases applies to the rental commitments of the Group. The Group is required to pay percentage rent on certain operating leases.
Percentage rent is payable as either Incentive Rent or Revenue Share. Incentive Rent occurs when the operating lease creates a liability to pay the lessor a percentage
of the Gross Receipts when a cinema site's earnings exceed the Base Rent. Gross receipts are generally made up of box office takings, concession sales and screen
advertising, but may also include revenue from licence fees, arcade games and the sale of promotional material. It is not possible for the Group to reliably determine the
amount of percentage rent that will be payable under each of the operating leases, as such, percentage rent is expensed as incurred, rather than being included in the
operating rent expense recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(b) Other expenditure commitments
Estimated capital and other expenditure contracted for at reporting date but not provided for: 33,625 17,117
24 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
Detailed remuneration disclosures of the Key Management Personnel ("KMP") of the Company and Group are set out in the Remuneration Report section of the
Directors' Report.
(a) Compensation of Key Management Personnel by Category
The compensation, by category, of the Key Management Personnel is set out below:
CONSOLIDATED VILLAGE ROADSHOW LIMITED
2016 2015 2016 2015
$ $ $ $
Short-Term 10,673,268 10,205,618 10,673,268 10,205,618
Post-Employment 222,190 260,526 222,190 260,526
Other Long-Term 302,308 104,031 302,308 104,031
Sub-totals 11,197,766 10,570,175 11,197,766 10,570,175
Share-based Payment 497,738 1,095,378 497,738 1,095,378
Totals 11,695,504 11,665,553 11,695,504 11,665,553
(b) Other transactions and balances with Key Management Personnel

Peninsula Cinemas Pty. Ltd. ("Peninsula Cinemas"), which are non-competing cinemas owned by an entity associated with Mr. R.G. Kirby, exhibit films supplied by the
Film Distribution division of the VRL group on arm's length terms and conditions. The total amount charged by the VRL group for the year ended 30 June 2016 was
$240,290 (2015: $354,456). In addition, Peninsula Cinemas received amounts from external parties on behalf of the VRL group, which were then paid to the VRL group,
which in the year ended 30 June 2016 totalled $222,067 (2015: $112,149). Other net reimbursement amounts paid by Peninsula Cinemas to the VRL group in relation
to operational cinema matters in the year ended 30 June 2016 totalled $5,558 (2015: $22,011 paid to Peninsula Cinemas).

The VRL group purchased wine from Yabby Lake International Pty. Ltd., an entity in which family members of Mr. R.G. Kirby have an economic interest. The total
purchases were $330,540 for the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: $318,786). The wine purchased was mainly for the Cinema Exhibition division's Gold Class cinemas
and for Corporate functions. These transactions were carried out under arm's length terms and conditions.

The VRL group purchased swimwear from Garyson Nominees Pty. Ltd., an entity associated with Mr. G.W. Burke. The total purchases were $31,300 for the year
ended 30 June 2016 (2015: $30,483). The swimwear was purchased on an arm's length basis as merchandise for resale by the Theme Parks division.

The Film Distribution division of the VRL group distributes a number of older film titles in which Village Roadshow Corporation Pty. Ltd., the Company's immediate
parent entity, has economic interests. During the year ended 30 June 2016, $53,086 (2015: Nil) was paid in accumulated film royalties to Village Roadshow Corporation
Pty. Ltd. for the period from July 2006 to December 2015.

The VRL group recharged occupancy costs and other net recharges for services provided and received, on an arm's length basis, to a number of entities associated
(either individually or collectively) with Messrs. R.G. Kirby, J.R. Kirby and G.W. Burke. The total net amount charged for the various occupancy and other services in
the year ended 30 June 2016 was $149,417 (2015: $115,471).

As at 30 June 2016, the total amount owing by the related parties detailed above, and included in current assets of the VRL group, was $19,405 (2015: $28,774), and
the total amount owing by the VRL group to the related parties detailed above, and included in current liabilities, was $8,112 (2015: $27,337).
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS

Long-Term Incentive Executive Share and Loan Plans ("LTI plans”)

The Company has used the fair value measurement provisions of AASB 2: Share-based Payment for all options or equity instruments granted to Directors and
relevant senior executives after 7 November 2002 which have not vested as at 1 January 2005. Under AASB 2: Share-based Payment these LTI plan shares and
loans are all treated as ‘in substance options’ even where the equity instrument itself is not a share option.

The fair value of such ‘in substance option’ grants is amortised and disclosed as part of Director and senior manager compensation on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period.

During the current and prior periods the consolidated entity had two different LTI plans in which Group employees, including Key Management Personnel ("KMP"),
participated to varying extents. These included:

1. The Company's Executive Share Plan and Loan Facility ("ESP") introduced in 1996; and
2. The 2012 Option Plan over ordinary shares to the Company's CEO ("2012 OP").

At 30 June 2016 both the ESP and 2012 OP remain in operation.

In addition the Group had a loan arrangement over a 1993 legacy equity-linked performance plan in which Mr. P.M. Harvie was the sole remaining participant, where
dividends were used to repay the interest accrued with any surplus dividend payment used to repay the capital amount of the loan. All grants to Mr. Harvie under this
legacy plan were in his capacity as an executive of the consolidated entity and were prior to him becoming part of KMP of the Company. Loans over 64,350 shares
were repaid from dividends during the 2016 year (2015: 128,700 shares) and the plan was closed.

All LTI plans have been approved by shareholders at the time of their introduction. Grants were made from time to time as appropriate, and all proposed grants to
Directors of the Company were put to shareholders for approval. The quantum of the LTI plan grants are reflective of the seniority of the position of the relevant
executive and their ability to contribute to the overall performance of the consolidated entity.

The ESP plan for senior executives of the consolidated entity has no specific performance conditions for the removal of restrictions over the relevant shares other than
successful achievement of annual performance criteria. Any value accruing to KMP and senior executives from the LTI plan is derived from improvement in the
Company's share price and dividends and distributions by the Company. The LTI plan also encourages a sense of ownership with those senior executives to whom
the LTI plan shares are granted, assisting in aligning their long-term interests with those of shareholders. From 1 July 2016, the vesting of ESP shares will be subject
to meeting total shareholder return performance hurdies, further aligning the interest of KMP with shareholders.

The Company considers that the five year period over which the ESP 'in-substance options' are ‘earned’ and the long-term horizon of the loans from the consolidated
entity for the ESP for the duration of the employees' employment are appropriate given the shorter term annual performance hurdles to which each senior executive is
subject. Similarly, the three, four and five year vesting periods of the ordinary options granted to the entity's CEO in the 2012 OP, together with the performance
conditions attaching to each tranche of options, are designed to encourage performance and to closely align the CEQO's interests with those of shareholders.

There are no provisions within any of the LTI plans for the automatic removal of restrictions on the relevant shares in the event of a change of control of the Company.

The ESP has limited recourse loans secured over the relevant shares, together with a buy-back option in the event of default. The Company has full control over all
loans and the repayment thereof and full control over all shares including through holding locks. From 1 July 2011 the Company has implemented a policy that
specifically prohibits the hedging of incentive remuneration granted to Executive KMP, whether restricted or unrestricted. For the CEQ’s 2012 ordinary options, the
terms of the offers specifically prohibit the hedging of unvested options by Mr. Burke.

From 1 January 2005, 'in substance options' granted as part of employee and executive compensation have been valued using the Black-Scholes or binomial option-
pricing model or the Monte Carlo simulation technique, which takes account of factors including the option exercise price, the current level and volatility of the
underlying share price, the risk-free interest rate, expected dividends on the underlying share, current market price of the underlying share and the expected life of the
'in substance option'.

Share-based Long-Term Incentive grants

Executive Share Plan and Loan Facility ("ESP")

The Company’s ESP was approved by shareholders on 19 November 1996 and allows for the issue of up to 5% of the Company's issued shares to relevant employees
of the consolidated entity and significant associated entities. Directors of the Company are not eligible to participate in the ESP. All grants to Mr P.M. Harvie were in
his capacity as an executive of the consolidated entity and were prior to him becoming a Director of the Company.

Offers are at the discretion of the Directors and shares are issued at the 5-day weighted average price on the market prior to allotment, rounded up to the next whole
cent. The shares are held directly by the employee who pays for the allotment by obtaining a loan from the consolidated entity which holds the ESP shares as security.

The ESP was amended in 2012. Shares issued prior to 2012 are earned and become exercisable at the rate of 20% per year over five years from date of issue. The
loan bears interest at ten cents per share per annum, and ten cents of dividends per share each year is used to repay the interest accrued and 50% of the remaining
dividend per share is used to repay the capital amount of the loan. For shares issued in 2012 and thereafter, one third vest at the end of years 3, 4 and 5 from the
date of issue, the loan bears interest at twenty cents per share per annum, and the first twenty cents of dividends per share per year is used to repay the interest
charged, and 50% of the remaining dividend per share is used to repay the capital amount of the loan. For shares issued in 2012 or thereafter, where the loan balance
owing falls below $2.00 per share, the interest rate becomes 10% of the balance owing on the loan.

The ESP was further amended with effect from 1 July 2016 with the loan bearing interest at the rate of 25 cents per share and the vesting of ESP shares being subject
to a performance hurdle of total shareholder return relative to the Company's peers.

If the employee resigns or is dismissed, the restricted shares are forfeited and the loan on the remaining unrestricted shares must be repaid within six months or such
other time as approved by Directors. In circumstances where the market value of the remaining ESP shares at the end of the six month period is less than the amount
owing on the loan, then the Company will buy-back the shares and cancel them in repayment of the loan without further recourse to the employee. This is the basis on
which they have been described as ‘in substance options’.

Under AASB 2: Share-based Payment, any allotments under the ESP are required to be accounted for and valued as equity settled options, and have been referred to
as 'in substance options’, even though the equity instrument itself is not an option.

On 29 November 2010, 350,000 ordinary shares were allotted under the ESP. The fair value of each 'in substance option' was estimated on the date of grant using
the binomial option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

- Value per loan per share: $2.35;

- Expected volatility: 35% based on historical volatility;

- Risk-free interest rate: 5.36% - the risk-free rate was converted to a continuously compounded rate; and

- Expected life of options: 8 years.

The resulting fair value per option for those 'in substance options' was $0.62.

The grant has been amortised over the vesting and exercisable periods resulting in an increase in employee benefits expense of $3,615 for the 2016 financial year
(2015: $13,198).

On 29 June 2012, 1,700,000 ordinary shares were allotted under the ESP. The fair value of each 'in substance option' was estimated on the date of the grant using
the binomial option pricing model with the following assumptions:

- Value per loan per share: $3.14;

- Expected volatility: 35% - based on historical volatility;

- Risk-free interest rate: 2.73% - the risk-free rate was converted to a continuously compounded rate; and

- Expected life of options: 8 years.

The resulting fair values per option for those ‘in substance options’ was $0.79.

These grants have been amortised over the vesting and exercisable periods resuiting in an increase in employee benefits expense of $200,837 for the 2016 financial
year (2015: $349,855).
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS (continued)
Share-based Long-Term Incentive grants (continued)
Executive Share Plan and Loan Facility ("ESP") (continued)

On 22 October 2012, 630,000 ordinary shares were allotted under the ESP. The fair value of each 'in substance option' was estimated on the date of the grant using
the binomial option pricing model with the following assumptions:

- Value per loan per share: $3.52;

- Expected volatility: 35% - based on historical volatility;

- Risk-free interest rate: 2.78% - based on the 8 year Australian Government bond yield; and

- Expected life of options: 8 years.

The resulting fair values per option for those ‘in substance options’ was $0.96.

These grants have been amortised over the vesting and exercisable periods resulting in an increase in employee benefits expense of $111,773 for the 2016 financial
year (2015: $157,920).

On 29 November 2012, 300,000 ordinary shares were allotted under the ESP to Ms. J.E. Raffe. The fair value of each 'in substance option' was estimated on the date
of the grant using the binomial option pricing model with the following assumptions:

- Value per loan per share: $3.78;

- Expected volatility: 35% - based on historical volatility;

- Risk-free interest rate: 3.07% - based on the 8 year Australian Government bond yield; and

- Expected life of options: 8 years.

The resulting fair values per option for those ‘in substance options’ was $1.05.

These grants have been amortised over the vesting and exercisable periods resulting in an increase in employee benefits expense of $61,859 for the 2016 financial
year (2015: $82,250).

For the June 2012 allotment, the ESP shares were granted at $3.14 to all executives other than Ms. Raffe, whose allocation was delayed to 29 November 2012 at an
issue price of $3.78 to allow for shareholder approval at the Company's 2012 annual general meeting. The Company agreed to compensate Ms. Raffe with an
additional bonus at the time of her future sale of ESP shares for the additional value, if any, foregone by the deferred grant date. This potential bonus payment to Ms.
Raffe represents a cash-settled share-based payment estimated to be a maximum of $275,439, to be re-assessed at each financial year for changes in the expected
probability of payment. The fair value of this cash-settled share-based payment was estimated on the basis of the estimated after-tax impact of $0.64 per share, being
the difference between $3.78 and $3.14 and will be accrued over 5 years from date of grant, being $54,090 for the 2016 financial year (2015: $71,920).

On 20 December 2012, 400,000 ordinary shares were allotted under the ESP. The fair value of each 'in substance option' was estimated on the date of the grant
using the binomial option pricing model with the following assumptions:

- Value per loan per share: $3.92;

- Expected volatility: 35% - based on historical volatility;

- Risk-free interest rate: 3.21% - based on the 8 year Australian Government bond yield; and

- Expected life of options: 8 years.

The resulting fair values per option for those ‘in substance options’ was $1.12.

These grants have been amortised over the vesting and exercisable periods resulting in an increase in employee benefits expense of $90,841 for the 2016 financial
year (2015: $116,978).

On 29 June 2015, 700,000 ordinary shares were allotted under the ESP. The fair value of each 'in substance option' was estimated on the date of the grant using the
binomial option pricing model with the following assumptions:

- Value per loan per share: $6.56;

- Expected volatility: 30% - based on historical volatility;

- Risk-free interest rate: 2.72% - based on the 8 year Australian Government bond yield; and

- Expected life of options: 8 years.

The resulting fair values per option for those ‘in substance options’ was $1.30.

These grants have been amortised over the vesting and exercisable periods resulting in an increase in employee benefits expense of $237,611 for the 2016 financial
year (2015: $1,302).

On 23 October 2015, 100,000 ordinary shares were allotted under the ESP. The fair value of each 'in substance option' was estimated on the date of the grant using
the binomial option pricing model with the following assumptions:

- Value per loan per share: $7.37;

- Expected volatility: 30% - based on historical volatility;

- Risk-free interest rate: 2.41% - based on the 8 year Australian Government bond yield; and

- Expected life of options: 8 years.

The resulting fair values per option for those ‘in substance options’ was $1.69.

These grants have been amortised over the vesting and exercisable periods resulting in an increase in employee benefits expense of $30,345 for the 2016 financial
year (2015: Nil).

The expected volatility of all ESP allotments reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual
outcome. Under AASB 2: Share-based Payment, any allotments under the ESP are also referred to as ‘in substance options’ even though the equity instrument itself
is not an option.

2012 Option Plan over ordinary shares to the entity's CEO ("2012 OP")

On 15 November 2012, the Company's shareholders approved the 2012 OP, granting 4.5 million options over ordinary shares to the Company's CEO, Mr. G.W.
Burke. The options were issued on 29 November 2012 being exercisable at $3.76 per share, with vesting subject to performance hurdles relating to growth in
earnings per share and growth in dividends. Following the $0.25 reduction of share capital approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 29 November
2013, the exercise price of the options was reduced to $3.51 per share, effective from 31 December 2013.

The options are not transferable and do not confer any right to participate in bonus issues or cash issues of ordinary shares. The option exercise price is adjusted for
discounted cash issues, and the number of shares issued on exercise of an option is adjusted for bonus issues of shares. The options do not carry voting or dividend
rights and are not listed for quotation on ASX.

One and a half million options are exercisable subject to certain performance conditions not earlier than 1 March 2016; one and a half million options are exercisable
subject to certain performance conditions not earlier than 1 March 2017; and one and a half million options are exercisable subject to certain performance conditions
not earlier than 1 March 2018. One and a half million options were eligible to vest during 2016 (2015: Nil).

The earnings per share ("EPS") performance hurdle has a starting point of 34.4 cents per ordinary share being diluted earnings per share before material items and
discontinued operations for the year ended 30 June 2012, with growth measured on financial year performance, and the dividends per share ("DPS") performance
hurdle has a starting point of 22 cents per ordinary share inclusive of franking credits, being the actual dividends paid in the 2012 calendar year, with growth measured
on calendar year performance.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS (continued)
Share-based Long-Term Incentive grants (continued)
2012 Option Plan over ordinary shares to the entity's CEO ("2012 OP") (continued)

For all options to vest, the Company’s performance must meet a minimum 8% Compound Annual Growth Rate ("CAGR") in EPS over the 3 year vesting period for half
of each tranche to vest, and must meet a minimum 8% CAGR in dividends paid over 2 out of the 4 year vesting period for the other half of each tranche to vest. For
half of the options to vest, the Company’s performance must meet a minimum 4% CAGR in EPS over the 3 year vesting period for one quarter of each tranche to vest,
and must meet a minimum 4% CAGR in dividends paid over 2 out of the 4 year vesting period for another quarter of each tranche to vest. Below 4% CAGR in either
DPS or in EPS, no options vest, with a pro-rata straight line vesting scale between 4% and 8% CAGR for each performance condition.

The effect of the performance hurdles on the potential vesting of the options can be illustrated as follows:

Number of Compound Annual Growth Rate ("CAGR")

Options able to

Vest if: <4% 4% 4% - 8% =or>8%

EPS CAGR hurdle Nil 375,000 Sliding Scale * 750,000|Maximum

achieved 1st Tranche

Dividend CAGR Nil 375,000 Sliding Scale * 750,000| OPtions

hurdle achieved #

EPS CAGR hurdle Nil 375,000 Sliding Scale * 750,000 Maximum

achieved 2nd Tranche

Dividend CAGR Nil 375,000 Sliding Scale * 750,000 OPtions

hurdle achieved #

EPS CAGR hurdle Nil 375,000 Sliding Scale * 750,000 Maximum

achieved 3rd Tranche
— - — * Options

Dividend CAGR Nil 375,000 Sliding Scale 750,000

hurdle achieved #

# Subject to 2 out of 4 years’ test.
* A pro rata straight line vesting scale applies.

All the options are exercisable no later than 1 March 2019. In the unlikely event of the termination of Mr. Burke’s contract for cause, Mr. Burke may exercise vested
options within one month of cessation of employment and all unvested options will lapse. In the event of termination without cause prior to December 2017, including
by way of redundancy, all option terms continue as if Mr. Burke’s employment had not ceased and all options will continue to vest subject to the growth hurdies being
met. If Mr. Burke voluntarily terminates his employment with the Company including by way of resignation or retirement, all options terms continue for 12 months as if
Mr. Burke’s employment had not ceased and on that date all remaining vested and unvested options shall lapse. If Mr. Burke dies or involuntarily terminates his
employment with the Company including by way of early retirement due to ill health, permanent disablement or mental incapacity, the Company retains the right to
allow all option terms to continue as if Mr. Burke’s employment had not ceased and all options will continue to vest subject to the growth hurdles being met.

750,000 first tranche options have lapsed as a result of the 4% EPS CAGR hurdle not being achieved and 750,000 first tranche options vested and were exercised as
the DPS CAGR hurdle was met.

The terms of the grant of the options provide that should the Board determine that Mr. Burke has entered into a hedging transaction or other transaction having the
effect of limiting or eliminating the economic risk associated with the options as a result of the DPS and EPS growth vesting hurdles to which they are subject, the
options will expire. .

The fair value of each option has been estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:
- Expected volatility: 35%;

- Expected yield: 6%;

- Risk-free interest rate: 2.75%; and

- Expected life of options: 3, 4 and 5 years ended 1 March 2016, 2017 and 2018 with expiry at 1 March 2019.

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. The resulting fair values per option for Mr.
Burke were $0.73, $0.74 and $0.75 for Tranches 1, 2 and 3 respectively.

These grants have been amortised over the vesting periods resulting in an increase in employee benefits expense of $154,236 for the 2016 financial year (2015:
$810,948).

Holdings of Executive Directors and Senior Managers

There have been no allotments to KMP under any share-based payment plan during the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: aliotment on 29 June 2015 of 300,000 and
100,000 ordinary shares to Messrs. C.J. Kirby and S.T. Phillipson, respectively).

The number of shares in the Company during the financial year in which the KMP of the Company have a relevant interest, including their personally-related entities,
are set out in the Remuneration Report section of the Directors' Report.

Number and weighted average exercise prices ("WAEP") and movements of Options & 'In Substance Options' during the year

2016 2016 2015 2015
Number| WAEP-$ Number WAEP - $§
Outstanding at beginning of year 9,991,710 3.59 | 9,530,410 3.47
Granted during the year 100,000 7.37 700,000 6.56
Forfeited/lapsed during the year (775,000) 3.50 (25,000) 3.29
Exercised during the year (1,012,683) 3.21 (213,700) 1.07
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 8,304,027 3.66 | 9,991,710 3.59
Exercisable at the end of the year 3,167,361 3.13 | 2,358,377 3.04

The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2016 is represented by:
Executive Share Plan and Loan Facility: 5,304,027 'in substance options' over ordinary shares in the Company with issue prices ranging from $2.35 to $7.37.
Option Plan for CEO: 3,000,000 options over ordinary shares in the Company exercisable at $3.51 each with an expiry date of 1 March 2019.
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26 REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS
The auditor of VRL is Ernst & Young (Australia). Aggregate remuneration received or due and
receivable by Ernst & Young, directly or indirectly from the VRL group, in connection with -
Ernst & Young (Australia) -
An audit or review of the financial report of VRL and any other entity in the VRL group 1,351,500 1,363,000
Other services in relation to VRL and any other entity in the VRL group:
Tax 230,344 263,080
Advisory / Corporate Finance 307,347 397,153
Assurance related 88,105 31,365
1,977,296 2,054,598
Auditors other than Ernst & Young (Australia) -
An audit or review of the financial report of any other entity in the VRL group 198,060 28,501
Other services in relation to any entity in the VRL group:
Tax 98,030 115,676
Advisory / Corporate Finance 321,663 27,800
Assurance related 9,095 -
626,848 171,977
2,604,144 2,226,575

27 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
Other than the following, there have been no material transactions which significantly affect the financial or operational position of the Group since the end of the
financial year.

Subsequent to 30 June 2016, the VRL group has provided additional Subordinated Debt funding to an associated entity, iPic-Gold Class Entertainment LLC (“IGCE”),
which may be converted into equity. The funding that has been provided subsequent to 30 June 2016, plus further amounts that will be provided prior to 30 September
2016, total USD 14.3 million.

In addition, further funding of USD 5.0 million has been provided to another associated entity, Village Roadshow Entertainment Group Limited (“VREG"), subsequent to
30 June 2016.

Due to equity accounting requirements, as both IGCE and VREG have negative net assets, these further net investment amounts will be immediately expensed, and
these losses will be disclosed as Material Items in the VRL group’s results for the half-year ending 31 December 2016 and the year ending 30 June 2017.

VILLAGE ROADSHOW LIMITED
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
28 PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES
(a) Summary financial information
Current assets 6,708 1,118
Total assets 435,042 388,564
Current liabilities 10,665 11,255
Total liabilities 126,754 12,523
Issued capital 224,234 220,406
Retained earnings 72,227 144,699
Employee equity benefit reserve 11,827 10,936
Total shareholders' equity 308,288 376,041
(Loss) profit after tax (27,485) 111,560
Total comprehensive (expense) income (27,485) 111,560
(b) Financial guarantees
Financial guarantees’ 397 477
(c) Franking credit balance
Amount of franking credits available as at year-end 3,816 1,178
Franking credit movements from refund of VRL's current tax amounts recorded at year-end (4,783) (12)
Franking debits that will arise after year-end, in relation to dividends paid or
declared (as at the date of this report) (9,666) (9,614)
Amount of franking credits (deficit) available after adjusting for the above impacts (10,633) (8,448)
(d) Contingent liabilities
(i) Bank guarantees for commitments of subsidiaries 1,530 1,049
(ii) Several corporate guarantees for operating lease commitments
(a) Guarantees for subsidiaries 38,415 46,888
(b) Guarantees for joint operations 116 13,142
(iii) Other corporate guarantee commitments
(a) Guarantees in respect of subsidiaries' commitments 4,900 4
44,961 61,083

" VRL has provided financial guarantees to a number of its subsidiaries, which commit the Company to make payments on behalf of these entities upon their failure to
perform under the terms of the relevant contract. The significant accounting estimates and/or assumptions used in determining the fair value of these guarantees have
been disclosed in Note 1(c)(xxx).
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(a)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Objectives for holding financial instruments
The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise bank loans and overdrafts, finance leases and hire purchase contracts, trade receivables,
trade payables and cash and short-term deposits.

The Group manages its exposure to key financial risks, including interest rate and currency risk in accordance with the Group's financial risk management policy. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally
interest rate swaps and collars (caps and floors). The purpose is to manage the interest rate risks arising from the Group's sources of finance. It is, and has been
throughout the period under review, the Group's policy that no speculative trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk, and include the fair value
movements from the financial instruments. The Group uses different methods to measure and manage different types of risk to which it is exposed. These include
monitoring levels of exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange risk and assessments of market forecasts for interest rate and foreign exchange. Ageing analyses
and monitoring of specific credit allowances are undertaken to manage credit risk, and liquidity risk is monitored through comparing projected debt levels against total
committed facilities. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below. Details of significant accounting policies
and methods adopted, including criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each
class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument, are disclosed in Note 1.

Risk exposures and responses

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt obligations with a variable interest rate. The level of
debt is disclosed in Note 16.

The primary objectives of interest rate management for the Group are to ensure that:
- interest expense does not adversely impact the Group's ability to meet taxation, dividend and other operating obligations as they arise;
- earnings are not subjected to wide fluctuations caused by fluctuating interest commitments; and
- covenants agreed with bankers are not breached.

Within the above constraints and targets, the Group's objective in managing interest rate risk is to maintain the stability of interest rate expense whilst ensuring that an
appropriate level of flexibility exists to accommodate potential changes in funding requirements. At reporting date, the Group had the following mix of financial assets
and liabilities exposed to Australian and USA variable interest rate risk that were not designated in cash flow hedges:

CONSOLIDATED
2016 2015
$'000 $'000

Financial assets: Cash and cash equivalents 64,338 95,335
Financial liabilities: Secured and unsecured borrowings 339,057 234,991
Net exposure 274,719 139,656

The Group enters into interest rate swap and collar agreements ("interest rate derivatives") that are used to convert the variable interest rates attached to various of its
specific facilities into fixed interest rates, or to limit interest rate exposure. The interest rate derivatives are entered into with the objective of ensuring that earnings are
not subject to wide fluctuations caused by fluctuating interest commitments and ensuring compliance with loan covenants. Interest rate risk will not generally be hedged
unless the underlying debt facility draw down exceeds A$20 million. For any debt exceeding this level, which is outstanding for more than three months from the original
drawdown date, interest rate exposure will generally be hedged for a minimum of 50% of the outstanding debt balance for a minimum of 12 months or until termination
of the loan, whichever is sooner.

At reporting date, various entities within the Group had entered into interest rate derivatives covering debts totalling $260.0 million (2015: $262.5 million). These
interest rate derivatives covered approximately 43% (2015: 53%) of total borrowings of the Group as at reporting date. The majority (by value) of the interest rate
derivatives mature in the 2018 financial year (2015: financial years 2016 to 2018), and have been designated in hedging relationships under Australian Accounting
Standards.

The Group constantly analyses its interest rate exposure. Within this analysis consideration is given to potential renewals of existing positions, alternative financing,
alternative hedging positions and the mix of fixed and variable interest rates. Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk-exposures has been calculated by estimating the
impacts in value and timing based on financial models. The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at reporting date. A
sensitivity of 100 basis points has been selected as this is deemed to be reasonably possible given the current level of both short-term and long-term Australian and
USA interest rates.

At 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, if interest rates had moved as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant, post tax profit and equity would
have been affected as follows:

Post tax profit Equity
Higher / (Lower) Higher / (Lower)
Sensitivity analysis 2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

CONSOLIDATED
If interest rates were 100 basis points higher with all other variables held constant (3,778) (2,850) 1,929 3,728
If interest rates were 100 basis points lower with all other variables held constant 3,778 2,850 (1,258) (3,849)

The movements in profit are due to higher/lower interest costs from variable rate debt and cash balances. The movements in equity are due to an increase/decrease in
the fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges. The sensitivities for each year are impacted by cash, debt and derivative balances, as well as
interest rates.
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(o)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Risk exposures and responses (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional foreign currency exposures, which arise from sales or purchases by the relevant division in currencies other than the division's functional
currency. In general, the Group requires all of its divisions to use forward currency contracts to eliminate the foreign currency exposure on any individual transactions in
excess of A$0.5 million, which are generally required to be taken out immediately when a firm commitment has occurred. The forward currency contracts must be in the
same currency as the hedged item, and it is the Group's policy not to enter into forward contracts until a firm commitment is in place.

In addition, the Group uses forward currency contracts to eliminate the foreign currency exposure on part of the Group's estimated foreign currency payments, which are
regularly updated to ensure a rolling forward cover position.

It is the Group's policy to negotiate the terms of the foreign currency derivatives to match the terms of the underlying foreign currency exposures as closely as possible,
to maximise the effectiveness of the derivatives. As at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, the Group had hedged the majority (by value) of foreign currency purchases
that were firm commitments. The following sensitivity analysis is based on the foreign currency risk exposures in existence at reporting date. A sensitivity of 10% has
been selected as this is deemed to be reasonably possible given the current level of the United States Dollar and other relevant exchange rates.

At 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, if foreign exchange rates had moved as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant, post tax profit and equity
would have been affected as follows:

Post tax profit Equity
Higher / (Lower) Higher / (Lower)
Sensitivity analysis 2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
CONSOLIDATED
If foreign exchange rates were 10 per cent higher with all other variables held constant - - (4,645) (4,345)
If foreign exchange rates were 10 per cent lower with all other variables held constant - - 5,677 5,310

The movement in equity is due to an increase/decrease in the fair value of the derivative instruments, which are all designated as cash flow hedges. The sensitivities
for each year are impacted by the derivative balances and exchange rates. There is no movement in profit in this foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis due to the
fact that movements in the unhedged foreign currency amounts only impact asset and liability balances.

Commodity price risk \
The Group's exposure to price risk is minimal.

Credit risk
The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Credit risk in trade receivables is managed in the following ways:
- payment terms are generally 30 to 90 days; and
- a risk assessment process is used for customers over $50,000.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset, other than derivatives, is the carrying amount of
those assets as recognised in the statement of financial position.

In relation to derivative financial instruments, credit risk arises from the potential failure of counterparties to meet their obligations under the contract or arrangement.
However, the Group ensures that it only enters into contracts with creditworthy institutions, as set out in the relevant Group policy.

Concentrations of credit risk:

The Group minimises concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade accounts receivable by undertaking transactions with a large number of customers within the
specified industries. The customers are mainly concentrated in Australia.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management is concerned with ensuring that there are sufficient funds available to meet the Group's commitments in a timely manner. The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, finance leases and hire purchase
contracts.

Liquidity risk is measured by comparing projected net debt levels for the next 12 months against total committed facilities on a rolling monthly basis and includes monthly
cash flow forecasts from the Group's operating divisions. Projected net debt levels take into account:

- existing debt;

- future operating and financing cash flows;

- approved capital expenditure;

- approved investment expenditure for new sites; and

- dividend distributions and income tax payments.

The risk implied from the values shown in the following table reflects a balanced view of cash inflows and outflows. Leasing obligations, trade payables and other
financial liabilities mainly originate from the financing of assets used in ongoing operations such as property, plant and equipment and investments in working capital.
These assets are considered in the Group's overall liquidity risk. To ensure that the maturity of funding facilities is not concentrated in one period, the Group will
generally ensure that no more than 30% of its committed facilities mature within any 12 month period. As at 30 June 2016, 0.2% (2015: 6%) of the Group's debt will
mature in less than one year.
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(c)

(i)

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Terms, conditions and accounting policies
The Group's accounting policies, including the terms and conditions of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are as follows:

Recognised Financial Instruments
Financial assets
Receivables - trade debtors:

Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and are carried at nominal amounts due less any provision for impairment loss. A provision for impairment loss is recognised
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the debt. Credit sales are normally settled on 30-90 day terms.

Receivables - associates and other advances:

Amounts (other than trade debts) receivable from associated entities and for other advances are carried at either the nominal amounts due or the amounts initially
recorded as recoverable. Interest, when charged, is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis, and provided against when not probable of recovery. There are no
fixed settlement terms for loans to associated and other entities.

Unsecured advances:
Unsecured advances are shown at cost. Interest, when charged, is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis. There are no fixed settiement terms.

Available for sale investments:
Available for sale investments are shown either at cost or fair value.

Financial liabilities
Trade and sundry creditors:

Creditors are recognised at amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services already received, whether or not billed to the Group. They are non-interest bearing
and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms.

Accounts payable - associated and other entities:
Amounts owing to associated and other entities are carried at the principal amount. Interest, when charged, is recognised in profit or loss on an accruals basis. There
are no fixed settlement terms.

Secured and unsecured borrowings:

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are de-recognised. Interest is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis. Bank loans are repayable either monthly or at other intervals, which in some
cases are dependant on relevant financial ratios, or at expiry, with terms ranging from less than one year to greater than five years. While interest is charged either at
the bank's floating rate or at a contracted rate above the Australian dollar BBSY rate, certain borrowings are subject to interest rate swaps or collars (refer below).

Details of security over bank loans is set out in Note 16.

Finance lease liabilities:
Finance lease liabilities are accounted for in accordance with AASB 117: Leases. As at reporting date, the Group had $0.1 million of finance leases (2015: Nil).

Interest rate swaps:
At reporting date, the Group had a number of interest rate swap agreements in place. Such agreements are being used to hedge the cash flow interest rate risk of
various debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

Interest rate collars:
At reporting date, the Group had no remaining interest rate collar (floor and cap) agreements in place. These derivatives were being used to assist in hedging the cash
flow interest rate risk of various debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The interest rate swaps have the same critical terms as the underlying debt obligations. The interest rate collars have been based on the underlying debt obligations,
and closely matched the terms of those obligations.

Equity

Ordinary shares:

From 1 July 1998, ordinary share capital has been increased based on the proceeds received from shares issued (less direct share issue costs), and decreased based
on the buy-back cost (including direct buy-back costs). Prior to that date, ordinary share capital was recognised at the par value of the amount paid up, and any excess
between the par value and the issue price was recorded in the share premium reserve. Details of shares issued and the terms and conditions of options outstanding
over ordinary shares at reporting date are set out in Note 19.
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(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Fair values
Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group's financial instruments recognised in the financial statements,
excluding any classified under discontinued operations.

TOTAL CARRYING AMOUNT AS
PER CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AGGREGATE NET FAIR VALUE
2016 2015 2016 2015
CONSOLIDATED $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets:
Cash 64,338 95,335 64,338 95,335
Trade and other receivables 174,130 159,864 174,130 159,864
Available for sale investments 720 1,056 720 1,056
Derivatives 1,260 6,526 1,260 6,526
Security deposits 205 97 205 97
Total financial assets 240,653 262,878 240,653 262,878
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 305,733 325,797 305,733 325,797
Secured and unsecured borrowings 599,057 497,491 590,644 487,976
Derivatives 6,608 5,311 6,608 5,311
Total financial liabilities 911,398 828,599 902,985 819,084

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair values of financial assets and liabilities:

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term deposits:

The carrying amount approximates fair value because of short-term maturity.

Receivables and accounts payable - current:

The carrying amount approximates fair value because of short-term maturity.

Receivables - non-current:

The fair values of non-current receivables are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based on current incremental lending rates for similar types of
arrangements.

Borrowings - current:

The carrying amount approximates fair value because of short-term maturity.

Borrowings - non-current:

The net fair values of the secured and unsecured borrowings are determined based on the weighted average market-based interest rates that are applicable to the
borrowings.

The Group uses the following methods in calculating or estimating the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability:

Level 1: Fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2: Fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices). The fair value of the financial instruments as well as methods used to estimate the fair value are summarised in the table below.

Level 3: Fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities as well as the methods used to estimate the fair value are summarised in the table below.

2016 2015
Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation
technique- technique- technique- technique-
market non market market non market
observable observable observable observable
inputs inputs inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets:
Derivatives 1,260 - 1,260 6,526 - 6,526
Total 1,260 - 1,260 6,526 - 6,526
Financial liabilities:
Secured and unsecured borrowings 590,644 - 590,644 487,976 - 487,976
Payables and accruals - 15,830 15,830 - - -
Derivatives ) 6,608 - 6,608 5,311 - 5,311
Total 597,252 15,830 613,082 493,287 - 493,287

The net fair values of the financial instruments are determined using valuation techniques that utilise data from observable and unobservable market data. Assumptions
are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date. The fair value is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows using an appropriate
market based yield curve, which is independently derived. As a result, these derivatives have been classified based on the observable market inputs as Level 2.

The net fair values of the secured and unsecured borrowings are determined based on the weighted average market-based interest rates that are applicable to the
borrowings. As a result, these borrowings have been classified based on the observable market inputs as Level 2.

The fair value of payables and accruals is determined using expected future financial performance based on terms of the sale contract and the knowledge of the
business (refer Note 32). As a result, payables and accruals have been classified based on non observable market inputs as Level 3.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Derivative financial instruments
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Current assets:
Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges 1,260 6,526
1,260 6,526
Current liabilities:
Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges 3,513 3,007
Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges 2,019 12
5,532 3,019
Non-current liabilities:
Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges 356 2,292
Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges 720 -
1,076 2,292

Instruments used by the Group

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps and collars (floors and caps) to hedge its risks associated
with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value. Refer Note 1(c)(ix).

The Group enters into derivative transactions under International Swaps and Derivatives Association ("ISDA") agreements, which allow for the netting of relevant
transactions which are to be settled at the same time, which does not occur regularly in practice. In certain situations, such as a default, all outstanding transactions
under the relevant ISDA are able to be terminated, and a net amount for settliement determined. The ISDA agreements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
statement of financial position, due to no default having occurred.

(i) Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to variability in cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability, or
a highly probable forecast transaction which could affect profit or loss. Where a hedge meets the strict criteria for hedge accounting, the effective portion of the gain or
loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in equity, while the ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss. The Group has the following foreign currency
contracts designated as cash flow hedges at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015:

Notional Amounts AUD Average exchange rate
2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Consolidated:
USD hedges 509 5,130 0.7339 0.8277
GBP hedges (615) 1,006 0.5231 0.5256
CAD hedges 4 27 0.9768 0.9809
NZD hedges (96) 329 1.0818 1.0614
EUR hedges (1,281) 21 0.6170 0.6833

(ii) Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges
In order to protect against rising interest rates, the Group has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it has a right to receive interest at variable rates and
to pay interest at fixed rates. At reporting date, the principal amounts and period of expiry of the interest rate swap contracts were as follows:

2016 2015

$'000 $'000

0-1 years (3,513) (3,007)
1-2 years (356) -

2-3 years - (2,292)

(3,869) (5,299)
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
The Group's interest rate swaps generally require settlement of net interest receivable or payable, and the settliement dates generally coincide with the dates on which
interest is payable on the underlying debt. The swaps are measured at fair value and, in respect of derivatives which are classified as effective, all gains and losses
attributable to the hedged risk are taken directly to equity and re-classified into profit or loss when the interest expense is recognised.
31 NON-KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following related party transactions occurred during the financial year and were conducted on normal commercial terms and conditions unless otherwise stated:
(a) Immediate Parent Entity
The Company's immediate parent entity is Village Roadshow Corporation Pty. Limited which is incorporated in Australia. The Company's ultimate parent entity is
Positive Investments Pty. Limited which is incorporated in Australia. Refer also to the Directors' Report disclosures for relevant interests of Directors in relation to the
100% ownership of the immediate and ultimate parent entities by Messrs. R.G. Kirby, J.R. Kirby & G.W. Burke.
(b) Associated Entities:
Revenues and expenses
The following transactions with associated entities were included in the determination of the operating profit before tax for the year:
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Management & service fee revenue - associates 685 722
Management & service fee revenue - other associated entities 178 143
Film hire and other film expenses (paid by the VRL group to entities in the Village Roadshow
Entertainment Group Limited group) 19,183 31,210
Film hire and other film expenses (paid by the VRL group to FilmNation Entertainment LLC) 3,451 9,247
Receivables and payables
Any amounts receivable from, or payable to, associates have been separately disclosed in Notes 7 and 15.
32 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - ACQUISITION OF OPIA

Effective from 18 December 2015, the VRL group acquired 80% of Countrywide Property Investments (UK) Limited and its subsidiaries (“Opia”). Opia is a sales
promotion consultancy business that creates brand sales promotion campaigns, and was acquired as part of the VRL group’s expansion of its Marketing Solutions
Division, which now comprises Edge Loyalty Systems Pty. Ltd. (“Edge”) and Opia.

The VRL group has elected to measure the 20% non-controlling interest (“NCI”) in Opia on the basis of the NCI’'s proportionate share of Opia’s identifiable net assets at
acquisition date.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Opia as at the date of acquisition were:

Recognised on
acquisition
2016
$'000
Cash and cash equivalents 12,428
Deferred tax asset 5,183
Other assets 8,521
Total Assets 26,132
Payables & accruals (18,501)
Other liabilities (805)
Total Liabilities (19,306)
Fair value of identifiable net assets 6,826
Goodwill arising on acquisition 52,536
59,362
Non-controlling interest on acquisition (20% of identifiable net assets acquired) (2,601)
56,761
Cost of combination:
Cash paid (50,257)
Estimated additional amount payable to vendor for net assets acquired (5,669)
Contingent consideration payable (835)
(56,761)
The net outflow on acquisition to 30 June 2016 is as follows:
Cash paid (50,257)
Net cash acquired 12,428
Net cash outflow (37,829)
Controlled Entity Acquisition Reserve 15,794 J

The goodwill recognised of $52.5 million is primarily attributed to the expected synergies and other benefits from combining the assets and activities of Opia with the
VRL group’s existing Edge business, which are now shown separately as the Marketing Solutions operating segment. All of the cost base of the goodwill is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes on a future disposal of Opia.
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32

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS - ACQUISITION OF OPIA (continued)

The negative Controlled Entity Acquisition Reserve of $15.8 million represents the relevant incremental amount for the put and call options over the remaining 20% NCI
in Opia in which the option holders, at their election, can require the VRL group to buy their interests, or the VRL group can elect to purchase the interests at a purchase
price in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

The estimated liability in relation to the put and call options has been calculated at fair value and changes in the fair value of the liability from period to period are
charged or credited to the Controlled Entity Acquisition Reserve in equity. At each balance sheet date, the calculated NCI is transferred to liabilities and combined with
this uplift amount in accordance with AASB 10: Consolidated Financial Statements .

From the date of acquisition, Opia has contributed $20.1 million of revenue and $3.0 million of net profit after tax to the Group (before deducting non-controlling interest
amounts). If the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the financial period, the VRL group’s revenue for the year ended to 30 June 2016 is estimated to have
been $1,056.8 million and the attributable net profit is estimated to have been $19.1 million.

Transaction costs of $1.3 million paid or accrued are included in expenses excluding finance costs (included with Restructuring Costs in material items of income and
expense in the Reconciliation of Results, which forms part of the Directors’ Report).

The estimated contingent consideration payable of $0.8 million has been based on future financial performance of the business over the two financial years to 31 March
2017, and has been based on current forecasts of the future earnings amounts on which the relevant calculations will be based. Whilst these amounts are variable, it is
not currently expected that the actual payments will differ materially from the estimated amounts shown above (which have been discounted as required to take account
of the timing of the expected payments).



67
VILLAGE ROADSHOW LIMITED

ABN 43 010 672 054
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Village Roadshow Limited, | state that:

(1) In the opinion of the Directors -

(a) the financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2016
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable; and

(c) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, as disclosed in Note 1(b)(i).

(2) This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance
with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

On behalf of the Board

/A

G.W. Burke
Director

Melbourne, 15 September 2016
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Village Roadshow
Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Village Roadshow Limited, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity
comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the
financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note
1(b), the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors’ report.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Opinion
In our opinion:

a. the financial report of Village Roadshow Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at
30 June 2016 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 1(b).

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors' report for the year ended 30 June
2016. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Village Roadshow Limited for the year ended 30 June
2016, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

‘Ernst & Young

David Shewring
Partner

Melbourne

15 September 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation



